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CHAIR CARROLL:

(Gavel.) This Land Use Committee

14

meeting of February 15th, 2006,

15

session.

16

Good morning, Members.

We have with us

17

this morning Member Anderson,

18

[sicl, Pontanilla, and Tavares.

19

Mateo, Kane, and Hokama.

20

is now in

Johnson, Mateo
Excused are

Members, this morning we have four items

21

on our agenda.

And without further ado, we

22

shall go right into the first one.

23

that we can finish all four items today,

24

believe we can.

I am hopeful

25
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2

ITEM NO. 46: COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT FOR FREDERIC
CONSTANT SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCE (KIHEI)
(C.C. No. 04-233)

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

1

We have the first,

LU-46, Community

4

Plan Amendment for Frederic Constant

5

Single-Family Residence in Kihei.

6

in receipt of County Communication No. 04-233,

7

from Planning Director, transmitting a proposed

8

bill, entitled,

9

AMEND THE KIHEI-MAKENA COMMUNITY PLAN AND LAND

10

USE MAP FROM PARK TO CONSERVATION FOR PROPERTY

11

SITUATED AT KIHEI, MAUl, HAWAII".

12

for the proposed bill is to enact a Community

13

Plan Amendment for the Frederic W. Constant

14

single-family residence located in approximately

15

0.252 acres in Kihei, Maui, to provide

16

consistency with the State Land Use designation

17

(Conservation District) and existing use of the

18

property.

Committee is

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE TO

The purpose

We will hear five-minute presentation

19
20

from the applicant, and following that,

21

Planning Department, after which we will have

22

public testimony.

23

MR. HART:

from the

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the

24

Land Use Committee.

My name is Chris Hart of

25

Chris Hart & Partners, and we were the
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1

consultants that were employed to or retained to

2

prepare the Community Plan Amendment for Fred W.

3

Constant and his wife, Mary Constant.

4

us today we have Mr. Constant and his wife Mary,

5

and Paul Mancini, who is the attorney on behalf

6

of Mr. Constant in this application.

7

And with

The application has a certain degree of

8

history, and it basically is located in the

9

State Conservation District, and I know that you

10

don't have the Land Use information with you,

11

but the property is actually

12

classification is Conservation.

13

zoning is R-3 Residential, and the Community

14

Plan designation is Park.

15

State Land Use
The County

And the Constants have built a home and

16

also proceeded to basically reconstruct a wall

17

on the property.

18

there were -- the basic request was to actually

19

file an application for an SMA permit.

20

assessment application was filed,

21

determined that the SMA application could not go

22

forward because of an inconsistency that --

23

between the Community Plan designation, which

24

was Park, or just Park, and the State Land Use

25

classification, which is Conservation.

And as part of the project

The SMA

and it was
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6
And so, in order to rectify that, there

2

was a decision by the Planning Department to

3

essentially file a

4

change the park designation in the Community

5

Plan to Conservation so that there could be

6

consistency.

7

Co~munity

Plan Amendment to

In the context of this process, the

8

Department of Land and Natural Resources issued

9

a right-to-construct permit to the Constants,

10
11

so

they proceeded with the process.
And in the context of the last meeting

12

that was held before this body, there was a

13

requirement or request that an archaeological

14

preservation plan be completed, and that plan

15

has been completed.

16

State Historic Preservation Division, Department

17

of Land and Natural Resources.

18

approved the plan.

19

It was transmitted to the

They have

And so, In the context of that, we are

20

back before you to proceed with the Community

21

Plan Amendment, which would be, again, an

22

amendment from the County Parks designation to a

23

Conservation designation in the Kihei-Makena

24

Community Plan.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you very much, sir.

Thank you.
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And I overlooked one of our

1

2

distinguished Members.

3

with us this morning.
Mr. Alueta.

4
5

6
7

Mr. Molina is also here

MR. ALUETA:

Good morning, Chairman and Members of

the Council.
As indicated, the project is for a

8

Community Plan amendment from Community Plan

9

Park to Conservation.

10

A while back, and during -- during early

11

Community Plan process, the project was

12

designated as Park.

13

anticipation of that the State would go along

14

and possibly condemn or purchase many of these

15

properties within the vicinity as far as the

16

Makena and Kinau reserve.

17

them more of a free hand in doing that, and

18

consistency.

19

It was done so in

This would have given

The State, when they did do their plan,

20

opted not to expand the existing park areas that

21

was controlled by the State to this area, and

22

specifically excluded this parcel as well as a

23

number of existing smaller parcels that had

24

existing single-family homes on them.

25

With that -- and there's a letter from
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

the Department of Land and Natural Resources

2

indicating that they -- they are no longer

3

pursuing that plan.

4

Commission had no objections to the project

5

being converted, on the Community Plan, from

6

Park back to Conservation.

7

Department as well as the

I believe that back in February of 2005
Issues

8

is when you first heard this matter.

9

that came up -- or the primary issue that came

10

up for deferral on this item was the State

11

Historic Preservation -- was the State Historic

12

Preservation item, as indicated by the letter

13

that was submitted back in -- I guess we got a

14

copy in February, that is dated November 28th,

15

2005, they have reviewed and approved

16

preservation plan.

17

Council at that time wanted to have that in hand

18

prior to taking action.

19

And I believe that the

And that's all I have as far as update

20

from our last meeting,

21

questions.

22
23

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

if you have any

Thank you, Mr. Alueta.

We will now open public testimony.
Public testimony is now open.
Do we have anybody signed up,
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2
3
4

9

Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA:

No, Mr. Chair, no one has signed up on

this item.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Is there anybody wishes to give

5

testimony on this item, or if you do not want to

6

wait until the other items come up, to give

7

testimony on them at this time.

8

when the other items come up, you can give

9

testimony at that time.

10
11

If you wish,

Seeing none, no objection, we will close
public testimony.

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

Public testimony is now closed.

Members, the Preservation Plan, which is

15

one of the things that was done, as was said,

16

and I think that Mr. Alueta has covered just

17

about everything.

18

questions.

19
20

I will open the floor for

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

This--

21

this house is within the Ahihi-Kinau Natural

22

Area, Natural Reserve Area; is that correct,

23

Mr. Alueta?

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

25

MR. ALUETA:

Mr. Alueta.

I believe it is in the vicinity.
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10

not sure if it's considered part of the reserve.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. ALUETA:

You are not sure?

It is not designated as part of the

4

reserve.

5

information on that.

6

the

7

but it is not owned by the State, I should say.

8

I mean, maybe the applicant has more
But I mean, it is within

it is within the area of that reserve,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well,

I think the Planning

9

Department should know if this is in the Natural

10

Area Reserve, and when I get a minute, I will go

11

get the map myself and check it, Mr. Chairman.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

Would you like me to call the

13

applicant down and you can ask him, or the

14

applicant's representative?

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

No objections, I will call down the

applicant's representative.
Please come to the microphone.

18
19

No, that's okay.

MR. ALUETA:

Mr. Chair, I was handed this by Public

20

Works and they have an e-mail indicating that

21

this is one of the four kuleanas that was

22

excluded from the natural reserve.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24

MR. ALUETA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And the e-mail is from who?

From Department of Public Works.
Can they provide us a map?
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MR. ALUETA:

11
If you -- it is in the original

2

application.

3

Is that the same

4

yeah.

5

MR. FOLEY:

6

MR. ALUETA:

8

Okay.

oh, that's his application,

That's not even the same -Thank you.
No,

7

Is it part of their packet?

I do not have a map that has

parcel-by-parcel specifics.
I do have, on the back of your -- what

9
10

you were attached, you have both a photograph

11

that has the Ahihi-Kinau Natural Reserve Area.

12

That's area -- Figure 2 on those II-by-18

13

sheets, as well as showing the State and the

14

Community Plan and the Zoning Districts.

15

those are the ones that were submitted as part

16

of the application.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And

But there's no -- there's no

18

lines designating where the Natural Area Reserve

19

is.

20
21
22

I will get that, Mr. Chairman, myself,
because I have it in the office.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Are you finished for now,

23

Ms. Anderson?

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

No,

I am not.

Thank you.

There's a 1974 letter, Mr. A1ueta,
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1

Exhibit 14, from DLNR regarding a

2

Conservation

3

Application for residence

4

Makena dated 1974.

Conservation District Use
residential use at

Is the applicant using this CDUA

5

6

application for the construction of their home,

7

or do they have a new application?

8

9
10
11

MR. ALUETA:

The '74 one?

No, there is a -- a new

approval.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

When did they get their

CDUA?

12

MR. ALUETA:

When did they get it?

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

MR. ALUETA:

Okay.

Yes, please.

If you look on Exhibit 17 of the

15

Department staff report that was presented to

16

the Maui Planning Commission February 10th,

17

2004, Exhibits 17, Conservation District Use

18

Application, extension -- extend and renovate

19

the existing 2, 759-square-foot single-family

20

residence located in Makena.

21

to inform you that your CDUA permit was approved

22

by the Chairman of the Board of Land and Natural

23

resources on December 24th,

24

following conditions.

25

Says,

I am pleased

2002, subject to the

And that letter is dated December 24th,
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1

2002.

2

Department of Land and Natural Resources, Land

3

Division.

4

they went ahead and did their renovation and

5

expansion.

6
7

It is from the Department -- State

And that is the permit that they --

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

they renovated, was that previously permitted?

8

MR. ALUETA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

And so the -- the house that

MR. ALUETA:

Permitted by the State, or by the -Either.

All.

I believe that the 19 -- as you said,

11

the

there was a 1974 CDUA permit that allowed

12

for the single-family residence, so obviously

13

so that indicates that there was a permit for

14

that house from the State.

15

I am not sure if there's been any

16

subject -- since '74, if there was one --

17

another one in the '80s.

18

the applicant may have some light on it.

19

were operating based on what their current

20

approvals were, and that they had a valid per

21

they had a valid CDUA permit.

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Maybe that -- I mean,
We

Did they have a valid SMA

and the required Change in Zoning?
MR. ALUETA:

That's why we are here today, is that

they did not.

They were not --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. ALUETA:

So this basically --

They were not granted an SMA permit for

3

the renovation/expansion of the single-family

4

residence.

5

they were issued two warnings in which to cease

6

and to

7

which to resolve the conflict between the

8

Community Plan, State designation, and zoning,

9

was for them to get a Community Plan Amendment

10

As indicated in the staff report,

the only way in

Ie for it, and which

from Park to Conservation.
Once they obtained that, they will be

11
12

able to apply for SMA permits.

13

be after the fact.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Albeit,

it will

Well, that's my point,

15

Mr. A1ueta, and what I am getting at is, you

16

know, this is a highly sensitive area,

17

all areas for building,

18

appropriate permits, especially since it's in

19

the natural or adjacent to the Natural Area

20

Reserve,

21

adjacent to the shoreline, of all places, this

22

should have been appropriately permitted before

23

the building was commenced.

24

why the Department has not issued any violation

25

or fines.

and of

I would think that the

and on the shoreline, and it has a spa

And I am wondering
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1

MR. ALUETA:

Because once --

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. ALUETA:

Or if they have.

I -- I agree with you fully that this is

4

a very important area, and why the State or the

5

county hasn't purchased the property,

6

know.

7

with money and will.

9

I -- a lot of things could be resolved

But that, obviously

8

I don't

the money and the

will to purchase this property did not -- was

10

not forthcoming by the State or the County;

11

therefore,

12

was excluded, along with other single-family

13

residences within this area that have been

14

traditionally populated either by Hawaiians or

15

by people who have come here.

16

it was taken out of their plan and

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, you know, that wasn't

17

my question, but since you mentioned that,

18

don't recall the property being offered to the

19

County for sale.

20

is have they been issued any fines?

21

MR. ALUETA:

No.

I

But nonetheless, the question

Because once they apply for -- once

22

they applied for the permit or the application

23

for a Community Plan Amendment, that was the

24

only way in which they could resolve the problem

25

of getting an -- getting an SMA permit.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So basically, what you are

2

saying is that the policy of the Planning

3

Department is to allow people to build in

4

violation of our County Code, and if they get

5

caught, all they have to do is come in and apply

6

for the permit, and they are forgiven their

7

violation?

8

MR. ALUETA:

9

MR. FOLEY:

10
11

Well, no.
Let me -- let me put this in a slightly

different perspective.
The house was built many years ago.

12

The -- the County notified the property owners

13

that they needed an SMA permit.

14

allowed to get an SMA permit until they got a

15

Community Plan Amendment.

16

a Community

17

enforcement warnlngs.

18

They weren't

They have applied for

and we did issue warnings,

zoning

But the policy is that we seek

19

compliance rather than fines.

20

applied for the Community Plan Amendment, we

21

didn't proceed to -- to fine them because they

22

are trying to solve the -- the problem by

23

applying for a Community Plan Amendment.

24
25

And once they

And then once they get a Community Plan
Amendment, or if they get one, then they would
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
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1

apply for an SMA permit, which would go to the

2

Planning Commission, and their inconsistency

3

between the Community Plan and the zoning would

4

be resolved.

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Mr. Foley.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, Mr. Foley, that's a

7

very fancy way of -- of saying that you are

8

allowing them to violate the County Code and to

9

come in after the fact and cure their violation

10

by filing for the permits that they should have

11

done in the first place.
And what authority is there In

12

in

13

either your SMA rules or the County Code that

14

allows this?

15

It looks like it's fully completed to me.

16

MR. FOLEY:

I mean,

I am looking at the house.

Yeah, the house has been there for many

17

years.

18

several years ago was just -- was to modify the

19

existing house.

20

This isn't a new house.

The proposal

Our -- our policy is and has been for

21

years to seek compliance rather than to just

22

issue warnings and violations and -- and fines.

23

And they have responded by,

24

appropriately, applying for a Community Plan

25

Amendment, and then they will be required to get
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an SMA permit.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

MR. FOLEY:

Well, but they --

But they already have approval by the

4

State.

5

District are issued by the State, not by the

6

county.

7

The building permits in the Conservation

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It's still in the County's

8

SMA, Mr. Foley, and if they weren't required to

9

get a Community Plan Amendment and a Special

10

Management Area, they -- permit, they wouldn't

11

be here today.

12

So you still have not answered my

13

question where the authorization is to allow

14

them to cure a violation by simply doing what

15

they are told to do, which is what they were

16

supposed to do in the first place, and -- and

17

file for these permits.

18

I mean, Mr. Chairman,

I don't mean to,

19

to -- you know, make an example of these people

20

because I know this is happening allover the

21

County, and our County policy is set by our

22

County Code.

23

departments making their own policy in -- in

24

violation of the County Code.

25

It is not set by individual

So I would like to have an answer from
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1

Corp. Counsel where there is authorization to

2

allow -- (laughter) Mr. Foley just passed the

3

mic -- where there's authorization to allow

4

this.
Because this is sending out a really bad

5

6

message to people that, you know what, it's

7

cheaper to just build without getting a permit

8

and hope you don't get caught.

9

get caught, it's still cheaper.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

MR. GIROUX:

And if you do

Corporation Counsel.

Thank you, Chair.
As far as a response to that,

12

I think

we have -- we

13

everybody, you know, kind of

14

have kind of beat this horse senseless.

15

what we need to realize is that every Department

16

has their own -- their own limitations as far as

17

what their ability to enforce is.

But

18

Whether they are going to allocate those

19

resources, distribute them, and take on the task

20

is of -- within -- within their abilities to do

21

so.

22

of enforcement falls within their purview to try

23

to take on that task as the best they can.

So as far as that goes, the administration

24

So as far as that goes, they -- they

25

need to be given the discretion, I guess, to
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1

to analyze and to see where -- where their

2

resources are and what they can do to mitigate

3

and to best enforce the laws that they are given

4

to enforce.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Giroux, you are Corp.

6

Counsel.

7

Can you please cite where in the Special

8

Management Area regulations that it allows a

9

violation to be cured by an after-the-fact

10
11

12
13

You are here to advise us on the law.

permit without any fines being issued?
MR. GIROUX:

I would have to do more research to look

into that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You would have to do more

14

research?

15

Mr. Giroux.

16

what their regulations are?

17

MR. GIROUX:

You sit on the Planning Commission,
You advise them.

You don't know

I don't have them in front of me, and I

18

probably have to do further research as far as

19

what the

20

as how they were going to administrate those

21

rules.

what the ramifications were as far

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

23

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

24
25

Ms. Anderson, the Chair
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I

will yield while I go get the rules.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Anderson, the Chair will make a
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1

request in writing to have that information

2

given to the

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

All right.

Ms. Johnson.

5

6

Com~ittee.

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because I think this was one

7

of the areas that we went out, a previous

8

Council, on a site inspection, I am not certain

9

if this was the same property, but I believe

10

when Mr. Nishiki had this in Committee, we did

11

make a site inspection.
One

12

and -- and I reread the minutes

13

for this.

But anyway, the -- the major areas of

14

concern

and I just want, if staff can respond

15

to this

has a Shoreline Certification been

16

done at this time?

17

that was required.

18

MR. FOLEY:

That was one of the things

I believe one of the maps in the

19

attachment shows a Shoreline Certification line.

20

I don't know which one.

21
22
23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

If necessary, perhaps we

could have the applicant respond
MR. FOLEY:

It is the eight-and-a-half-by-ll drawing

24

that shows that -- and it -- it was in the

25

original submittal, I think.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

MR. FOLEY:

It is right after the photos.

Yeah, it is right after -- right after

3

the photographs.

4

Newcomer-Lee.

It is a survey prepared by

It shows the

let's see.

It shows the shoreline setback line, and

5
6

it says Shoreline Certified on August 14th,

7

1986.

8

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

How often are the

shorelines recertified, or is it only done when

10

there is some type of change or modification

11

that's been done to the property?

12

MR. FOLEY:

Usually, yes,

it's done in conjunction

13

with a proposal to get a building permit or an

14

SMA permit.

15

are only valid for one year.

16

And the shoreline certifications

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Well, when were the,

17

guess, the modifications made that we are

18

looking at right now, you know, to this home?

19

Or have there been no modifications made since

20

the '80s?

21
22

MR. ALUETA:

I

Mr. Chair.
Ms. Johnson, my -- my recollection of

23

this is that, and our rules,

it's been a while

24

since I have done with SMA rules,

25

certified shoreline, they are only valid for one

in that for a
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1

year if it is a sandy shoreline.

2

allow for the applicant to use an existing or

3

preexisting Certified Shoreline if it's a fixed

4

or rocky shoreline.

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

MR. ALUETA:

Okay.

Our rules

So--

I -- I'll -- I'll have to confirm that

7

to see, but I believe that -- that our rules,

8

the Maui Planning Commission rules and the

9

Planning Department rules allow for someone to

10

use a pre-existing Certified Shoreline map if

11

it's a fixed shoreline.

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And because this is

13

not a fixed shoreline, the certification has

14

expired?

15

MR. ALUETA:

It is.

16

MR. FOLEY:

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

18

MR. ALUETA:

It is a fixed.

It is a fixed hardened shoreline.
It is a hardened shoreline.

It is a hardened shoreline in the sense

19

that there is a lava flow on the one side, and

20

then there is a lava flow with a rock wall built

21

on top of it.

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And the rock wall was

23

the subject of the State Historic Preservation

24

Division's concerns, or at least the Planning

25

Commission minutes, about submitting some type
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of a Preservation Plan?
MR. ALUETA:

Yes.

In this case, the State wanted

them to preserve the -- the rock wall.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
All right.

5

The structure.

Okay.

So in regard to Shoreline

6

Certification, what you are saying is that that

7

is not applicable in this case, that the 1986

8

Shoreline Certification, because there have been

9

no modifications, additions, or changes since

10

that time, have not triggered a new Shoreline

11

Certification?

12

MR. ALUETA:

Yes.

Is that what you are saying?
That we -- I believe -- and I have

13

to confirm our rules -- but I believe that our

14

rules allow for us to use an older Certified

15

Shoreline map, provided that it is a fixed

16

shoreline.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And you are also

18

verifying that there have been no modifications,

19

changes, or additions since '86?

20
21
22

MR. ALUETA:

I was still in high school,

so I am

going to have to do more research on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No,

I am just expecting you

23

to read, you know, the report so that at

24

least -- if you can't answer it,

25

but if you could, or Mr. Chair, if you could

I understand,
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1

have the applicant or his representative answer

2

that question,

3

you know, at least at this point, that was one

4

of the issues that was raised during the

5

Planning Commission hearing, a Shoreline

6

Certification.

7

MR. ALUETA:

I think it is germane because,

Correct.

And during -- given that you

8

are doing a land use entitlement issue, not a

9

building -- like an SMA, the SMA -- the

10

Certified Shoreline is triggered during the SMA.

11

It is a requirement of the SMA.

12

So when they come in, or should they be

13

granted a change here today or in the future,

14

one of the meetings, they would then be allowed

15

to apply for an SMA permit.

16

at

At that time, we would then determine,

17

do we require them to get a new Certified

18

Shoreline, or do we require -- or will we allow

19

them to use an old Certified Shoreline map.

20
21
22

That's the -- so I do not think it is
relevant to your actions today.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And -- and the only

23

reason I am raising it, Mr. Chair, is because

24

these were the issues of concern with regard to

25

the applicant coming before the Planning
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1

Com~ission,

2

concerns that the public did.

3

would like an answer whether, you know,

4

Mr. Alueta feels it's relevant or not.

so I am just raising the same
At some point I

But the other concern was the draining

5

6

of the pool, with chlorine.

7

that your Department has looked at or has the

8

applicant made any modifications as to the

9

drainage of the pool or any possible problems

Is there anything

10

with regard to the chlorine that the pool or the

11

spa uses?

12

MR. ALUETA:

Like I said, and that would be an issue

13

that, you know,

14

opportunity to review an SMA permit, those are

15

the type -- exact type of conditions that we

16

would attach to the SMA, if they have not

17

already been attached to the CDUA permit.

18
19

should we ever get an

But it is -- it is obviously prohibited
to drain your pool into the ocean.

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

21

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

I mean --

Excuse me.
Yes.

We have been informed that

23

chlorine -- the pool is no longer using

24

chlorine.

25

not using chlorination in the pool.

It's only natural water.

They are
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Thank you very much,

Mr. Chair.

3

The septic versus cesspool,

4

this was another one of the issues that was

5

raised.

6

know, this Natural Area Reserve, and of course

7

the shoreline, have there been -- and I know

8

that there was some modifications made in the

9

EPA rules and regulations regarding use of

I know that

Because of its close proximity to,

you

10

septic.

11

in the household that would trigger the

12

applicability.

13

what type of system this particular property is

14

utilizing.

15

MR. ALUETA:

I think it's over so many individuals

But I

just want to reconfirm

According to the site map -- according

16

to the site map,

17

CDUA permit does require them to comply with the

18

Department of Health rules.

19

predecessor consultant, which was Rory Frampton

20

on the project,

21

gone in and done some improvements, but I am not

22

sure that they were prepared to do that.

23

it is a cesspool; however, the

In dealing with the

I believe that they had already

And maybe you can ask the applicant if

24

they have done some or are proposing

25

improvements above their cesspool.
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CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Johnson, they have upgraded that

2

to a septic tank and leech field in order to

3

mitigate any -- and impacts on inshore waters.

4

That has been done.

5

6

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you very

much, Mr. Chair.
And with regard to any of the new

7
8

shoreline setback rules that have changed since

9

the last time,

I believe, this issue was heard

10

by the Planning Commission,

11

applicability, or is it only applicable if the

12

structures or actually damaged through fire or

13

hurricane or some other means,

14

would those rules be applicable?

15

MR. ALUETA:

is there any

and at that time

They are -- they are subject to the new

16

rules as all shoreline properties are.

17

In the case of this one, it is

18

because we are using the erosion rate maps In

19

addition to our minimum,

20

they would still be subject to -- and there is

21

no erosion here because it is hard lava, and

22

lava with a rock wall, that there is no -- there

23

wouldn't be any erosion rate along the

24

shoreline; therefore, they would have a minimum,

25

I believe, of 40 feet.

I believe,

40 feet.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And there's nothing within

2

that 40-foot setback?

3

pool was 38 feet from this --

4

MR. ALUETA:

Because I thought the

I mean, once again, I am going to have

5

to confirm all this.

6

all this during our SMA permit.

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

MR. ALUETA:

9

And normally, we handle

Well

When they come in for a cert

when

they come for their SMA, if -- if -- if these

10

structures were not existing.

They could be

11

existing, non-conforming, prior to the rules.
Prior to I believe '80 -- prior to '85

12
13

or '86, the setback was -- had a minimum

14

allowed for a minimum of 25 feet.

15

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

I just

the reason I

16

am asking, Mr. Chair, is because these were

17

issues that were raised last time because I made

18

notes about the various areas that were to be

19

covered.

20

measures that were spoken about, both at the

21

Planning Commission and at our Council meeting

22

previously on this measure, have at least been,

23

you know, addressed in some way.

24
25

So I am glad to see that some of the

I don't necessarily agree that we as a
Council should not be looking at these things
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1

because it is important even though ultimately

2

the decision will fall to the Planning

3

Commission should this move forward.

4

it's entirely appropriate for us to do our due

5

diligence because Members of the Planning

6

Commission have changed, and they may not have

7

the same degree of familiarity with the

8

questions that were asked originally.
So I -- I am through with my questioning

9
10
11

at this point, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL:

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

Any further questions?

Thank you, Chair.

Mr. Alueta, do you know if this wall,

14
15

Thank you.

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.

12
13

I think

this retaining wall, was permitted?
MR. ALUETA:

Not off the top of my -- not off the top

17

of my head, ma'am.

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could we find that out,

19

Mr. Chair?

When and if this stone wall, this

20

revetment, was permitted?
I believe the Planning Department does

21
22

have a

a file that shows all the permitted

23

all the shoreline hardening in Maui County

24

that

25

sure it covers this because it was done sometime

that was or was not permitted, and I am
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ago, and this wall has been there for some time.
MR. ALUETA:

Do you just -- do you -- ma'am, do you

3

want to know the exact date that it was

4

constructed?

5

not it was constructed prior to a certain date?

Or do you want to know whether or

Because yes, we do have documents that

6

7

were done,

8

photographs of the shoreline hardening.

9

slides,

10

I believe, in '84 or '86 that has
We have

I should say.
And then we do have some drawings that

11

were done also back in '87,

12

something like that.

13

And then we also

I think,

or

I did a videotape of

14

the shoreline of South Maui after the last major

15

hurricane, which

to show some of the

16

shoreline retreat.

But--

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah,

I would be interested

18

in knowing when it was built and if it was

19

permitted when it was built.

20

And also, could you tell me, what

21

State Historic's -- Preservation Office's

22

particular concern with this wall?

23
24
25

MR. ALUETA:

lS

I would defer to the letter from

November 28th, 2005.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Do you know what exhibit
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that is, Mr. Alueta?
MR. ALUETA:

I believe that is the one that has been

3

handed out.

4

Council Services.

5

We were

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

we were given it by

So this was -- this was

6

issued after the Planning Commission already saw

7

this?

8

9

MR. ALUETA:

It was an issue in which the Commission

was aware of it, and that the applicant had to

10

provide for and approved a Preservation Plan.

11

And apparently, the -- it was an issue with

12

the -- the Council at its February '05 meeting,

13

and that you wanted it to have it, the

14

Preservation Plan, in hand.

15

applicant moved forward or their consultants

16

moved forward in getting that, and they obtained

17

it back -- and it was prepared back in September

18

of 2005, so --

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

And therefore, the

Thank you.

So when

20

was the notice of violation or the stop-work

21

order or whatever it is that the Planning

22

Department issued, when was that done?

23

MR. ALUETA:

The notice of

it is a notice of

24

warning, not a notice of violation.

25

memory serves me correctly, the Planning

If my
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1

Department or the Zoning Administration Division

2

of the Planning Department, their rules require

3

that they issue two warnings prior to issuing

4

violations.

5

in February -- issued the first warning in

6

February 6th, 2003, and their second warning was

7

given on March 19th, 2003.

8

9
10
11

They were issued two warnings back

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And were they constructing

in the -- at that time?

Were they in the

process of renovating the building?
MR. ALUETA:

Yes, that's why they were given the -- I

12

believe -- my understanding is that they had a

13

CDUA permit in hand.

14

believe or did not know that the County also had

15

an SMA and had some type of jurisdiction because

16

they were only dealing with the State;

17

therefore, they went ahead and constructed.

18

They -- they did not

They were told in February or

19

actually prior to February,

20

some verbal conversations with the Staff Planner

21

at the time, that they needed an SMA.

22

They went ahead.

I believe they had

The Staff Planner then

23

notified our zoning division.

They then were

24

given a notice of warning February of -- the

25

Staff Planner went out,

saw, hey, they are still
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1

building.

They didn't stop.

2

Administration back out again to give them a

3

second warning.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

MR. ALUETA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7
8
9

He sent Zoning

And then did they stop?

The house is done, so apparently not.
And when did they come in

and file for an SMA assessment?
MR. ALUETA:

June of 2002, and that's when it was

returned -- that is why it was returned.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

MR. ALUETA:

Excuse me?

That's why we -- we -- in June of 2002,

12

they filed for their SMA, and we returned it for

13

their inconsistency, okay?

14

So now --

15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

See what I'm saying?

And they went ahead

with it.
MR. ALUETA:

they were told that they needed to

18

get a condition -- a County -- they needed to

19

get a Community Plan Amendment.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Now, Mr. Alueta, that just

21

contradicts what you just previously said.

22

said they went ahead and built because they

23

didn't know they needed an SMA, even though they

24

had already filed for an SMA.

25

MR. ALUETA:

No,

I said that they knew.

You

They said

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofe: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

1

2

35

that they didn't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

didn't

4

MR. ALUETA:

I'm saying

I don't know how they

I am saying that we met with them,

and

5

their consultant applied for the application.

6

We told -- we returned it because it was

7

inconsistent.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9
10

Community Plan
MR. ALUETA:

That they needed to get a

A~endment.

Right.

So they went -- I guess they had

11

either a disagreement or they did not believe

12

that they needed one even though they had

13

applied for one.
They then sent it -- they -- and then

14
15

they went ahead and started construction without

16

it, and without filing for a Community Plan

17

Amendment, and then they got their two warnings

18

from us.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So they did this in full

20

knowledge that they were violating our law.

21

Who was their planner at that time?

22

They had a consultant in 2002 when they applied

23

for their SMA assessment?

24
25

MR. ALUETA:

Their consultant was Chris Hart &

Partners.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, then, they were fully

2

aware, Mr. Chairman, that -- that they were in

3

violation of the County law and State law

4

because SMA is a State statute.

5

and built after they knew that they needed to

6

get an SMA -- rather, a Community Plan

7

Amendment.

And went ahead

And this is my problem.

8

And I am -- I am especially upset

9

because it is in a highly sensitive area.

10

this is an area that,

11

aside for the public as a preserve,

12

right on Ahihi Bay.
And you know,

13

for the most part,

I mean,

And
is set

and they are

it's all done

14

already.

15

it.

16

They are going to exist in violation.

17

if the County Planning Department doesn't even

18

issue fines for violating instructions that they

19

specifically gave to somebody, then they

20

certainly aren't going to require them to go in

21

and tear down the building, even though the SMA

22

regulations allow for that.

23

There isn't too much we can do about

If we turn this down, then -- then what?
And if

So we are between a rock and a hard

24

spot.

And I want to see some violations issued,

25

some fines issued for violating the County Code.
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And going on and -- and building,

1

2

despite warnings, with no oversight by the

3

County,

4

Special Management Area's intent and purpose,

5

and I want to see the County step forward.

6

I think this is an extreme abuse of the

They should be -- they should be fined

7

at least $10,000 for what they have done

8

according to the SMA regulations.

9

And -- and Mr. Giroux, was there a

10

settlement between the Planning Department and

11

the applicant over these violations?

12

any settlement agreement negotiated or reached?

13

MR. GIROUX:

Ms. Anderson,

Was there

I am not aware of any at

14

this time.

I -- I am not involved that in-depth

15

with the Department as far as what their

16

interactions are with -- with the applicants.

17

You would have

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

MR. ALUETA:

No,

to have to ask the Department.
Mr. Alueta, do you know?

I am not aware of any settlement

20

between the Zoning Administration and the

21

applicant.

22
23
24
25

Once again --

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, did you ever issue a

notice of violation?
MR. ALUETA:

That's what I am getting to is that, as

indicated in our Exhibit 18, the only things
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1

that were provided to me from the Zoning

2

Administration was two notices of warning.

3

violation.

4
5

6

No

Just two notices of warning.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And the notices of warning

said what, Mr. Alueta?
MR. ALUETA:

It says here, description of violation

7

is construction activity without an SMA permit

8

approval.

9

Take immediate action.

And after the two notices of warning,

10

the only way in which they could resolve the

11

issue was -- they couldn't file for an SMA,

12

because they had inconsistency, and they knew

13

that.

14

a Community Plan

15

that -- they filed the Community Plan Amendment

16

on July of 2003.

17

filed for the Community Plan Amendment.

They -- they were told they needed to get
&~endment,

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

construction?

20

MR. ALUETA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

construction?

23

MR. ALUETA:

and they filed

So within four months, they

And -- and did they continue

Pardon?
Did they continue

I don't know, and -- but I am -- I am

24

assuming that is was, because the house -- I

25

believe the house is complete.

My understanding
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is that the house is complete.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So was a stop-work ever

3

issued, stop-work order?

4

warning says that a -- says stop work on

5

proposed addition.

6

stop-work order was ever issued?

7

MR. ALUETA:

Because the notice of

You don't know if a

None was provided to me from the Zoning

8

Administration Division and the -- and the

9

inspector.

I asked for all the records from the

10

inspection at the time I drafted this report.

11

I -

12

me, but I will follow up with them to see

13

whether anything else, but I do not believe

14

anything else has been issued since that time.

15

I do not believe they would have informed

Because once

- the way the Zoning

16

Administration Division enforcement goes,

17

indicated previously, is once they make an

18

attempt -- once they attempt to try to resolve

19

the violation, they will give them a grace

20

period to try -- because they filed for the

21

application for Community Plan Amendment,

22

they tried to resolve the violation.

23

it is not in their policy to continue to cite

24

them knowing that they are in the process.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

as

and

So they

Well, being in the process
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1

is one thing, but continuing to build under the

2

violation is an -- entirely another.

3

MR. ALUETA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

6

Right.
Do you know if they were

ever issued building permits?
MR. FOLEY:

Yeah, they got a building permit from the

7

State.

8

permits in the Conservation District.

9

were building with a State building permit.

10
11

The County doesn't issue building

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So they

And do you have a copy of

that building permit?

12

MR. FOLEY:

13

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

14

Mr. Chairman?

15

can issue a building permit in violation of

16

Special Management Area regulations.

17

Zone Management is a State statute, and the

18

State certainly would know that that's in the

19

SMA because it's on -- it's on the shoreline.

20

Not in your packet.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Could we get a copy of that,

Because I don't think the State

If there's no objections,

Coastal

I would

21

like to call the applicant or his representative

22

over to answer a few questions.

23

First of all, Ms. Anderson's question,

24

could you explain why construction was continued

25

after the issuance of warnings?
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Mr. Chair, as -- as is indicated by

2

Mr. Alueta, the parcel is In the Conservation

3

District, and the original conservation use

4

permit was granted in 1974, and there had been a

5

house existing on the site prior to that.

6

And that was prior to the adoption of

7

the Statewide Coastal Zone Management program in

8

1976; in 1980 was the final promulgation of the

9

rules, or of the statute, 205A.

10

Basically, the State had also issued, in

11

1988, a subsequent CDUA on the property for

12

renovations, and the last basic approval by the

13

State was granted in 2002.

14

assumption, and you know, obviously, that they

15

felt that it was appropriate that they could

16

issue the Conservation District use permit, and

17

actually what

18

right-to-construct permit by the State

19

Department of Land and Natural Resources, which

20

would be like our Maui County building permit.

21

Okay.

22

NOw,

it is my

what they consider a

So, at that time, there was an

23

assumption that the State had authorized it, so

24

they proceeded.

25

on the

Now, there were warnings, and

in the context of the warning,
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1

there -- we were notified, and we did prepare a

2

Special Management Area assessment, which was

3

submitted to the Planning Department in June of

4

2002.

5

And then, of course, there was a period

6

of time that went by, in the context of the

7

determination by the Corporation Counsel that

8

because the parcel is in the Parks district,

9

which, you know,

is kind of similar to

10

Conservation; there is other Conservation

11

there are other Conservation District lands in

12

Maui County that are identified as Park in the

13

Community Plan, and also Open Space in the

14

Community Plan, but that we had to go through a

15

Community Plan Amendment to identify the parcel

16

as Conservation.

17

Now there is no Conservation District

18

zonlng ordinance in Maui County, but it does

19

exist in our key,

20

felt we will go do that.

21

in our Community Plan.
So we did file.

So we
Okay.

Now, in the context of that time, that

22

went by, you know,

it was our assumption that we

23

could get a Special Management Area permit, and

24

then, of course, then we -- then it was

25

determined that we couldn't, so then we filed
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the Community Plan Amendment.

for the

Now,

2

I don't know exactly, you know,

3

what occurred in the context of the -- of the

4

construction, but I am assuming that in the

5

context of the warnings, and in the context of

6

the -- the application for the SMA permit,

7

ultimate determination by the Corp. Counsel that

8

they couldn't process the Special Management

9

Area use permit, or assessment permit, and the

10

decision that we had to go through a Community

11

Plan Amendment, that the project was built and

12

completed as Councilwoman Anderson indicates.
But there was no notice of violation, no

13
14

stop-work order issued by the County of Maui,

15

and no stop-work order issued by the State of

16

Hawaii.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.

18
19

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you for that, Chris.

20

So you never -- you never negotiated any

21

kind of settlement with the County in regards to

22

the -- the notice of warnings?

23

MR. HART:

We did.

We talked to -- we went right to

24

the Planning Department because, obviously, the

25

Planning Department administers its only
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1

enforcement division.

2

talked to them, and it was determined that even

3

though the Conservation District use permit,

4

original one, was issued in 1974, it was really

5

important that we comply today and get a Special

6

Management Area -- comply with the Special

7

Management Area permit process or the SMA rules,

8

so we did file in -- in June of 2002.

9

thought at that time that that was sufficient.

10

Okay.

Went right to them and

And we

That's what we understood.
But then there was a more conservative

11
12

interpretation.

13

because of the fact that there are Conservation

14

District lands in Maui County that are Community

15

Planned Park and also Open Space.

16

there is no Conservation District use or

17

Conservation District zoning ordinance in Maui

18

County Code.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20

MR. HART:

Yeah.

As I said, it's kind of obscure

And you know,

Mr. Hart, please.

So we felt that we were okay.

21

And then the Corp. Counsel basically

22

said that we needed to file a Community Plan

23

Amendment, so that's what we did.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, you know, Mr. Hart,

you -- you are a past Planning Director, and I
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1

don't know how you can say we thought we were

2

okay by proceeding without an SMA permit when

3

you know it was in the SMA area.

4

MR. HART:

Well,

I know that the State Department of

5

Land and Natural Resources has control over the

6

Conservation District.

7

case, they issued a permit to basically build --

8

to renovate the house.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And in this particular

Talking about the 2002

permit?

11

MR. HART:

Yes,

I am.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And it says, in its very

l3

first condition,

"The applicant shall comply

14

with all applicable statutes, ordinances, rules,

15

regulations, and conditions of the Federal,

16

State and County governments."

17

MR. HART:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19

Okay.

a minute.

20

MR. HART:

21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

22

Okay.

All right.
And it is in the -- in the

Natural Area Reserve.

23

MR. HART:

24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

So I am not buying that for

But it is one of the excluded parcels.
Doesn't matter.

It is

within the reserve.
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1

MR. HART:

Right.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It is an excluded parcel

3

only that it is not owned by the State within

4

the reserve.

5

MR. HART:

Right.

It's still in the reserve.
But there are other, there are

6

four other kuleana parcels in that area that are

7

not owned by the State but are within the

8

reserve.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And have they built without

permits?

11

MR. HART:

I have no idea.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, that's not the topic.

13

We are on this one, and Mr. Chairman,

14

have a really hard time just giving them a pass

15

on this.

18
19
20

As if oh, well, we did our best.
Did you -- did you submit construction

16
17

I just

plans to the DLNR for approval of the building?
MR. HART:

Yes, they were submitted, and that was --

that was the basis for the permit.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And have you submitted a

21

copy of those -- of that submittal to DLNR to

22

the County?

23

MR. HART:

I don't think so, no.

It was just

24

basically -- because it's in the Conservation

25

District, and the County doesn't issue building
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permits in the Conservation District.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

It also says in their 2000

3

letter, permitting this CDUA, that plan approval

4

by the chairperson does not constitute approval

5

required from other agencies.

6

MR. HART:

Okay.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Do you know what the 1988

8

CDUA application that you -- you just mentioned

9

was for?

10

MR. HART:

I don't.

I assume it was for

11

reconstruction of the residence

12

basic house.

13

no?

For the

That's what I meant.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So was the house, the

14

original house, that was there in 1974, that was

15

torn down, and then they got one in 1988 for

16

this new house?

17

MR. HART:

18

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

19
20

That's correct.
And they built that without

an SMA permit?
MR. HART:

That's correct.

And I -- and I believe

21

that it goes back to the fact that, for whatever

22

reason, you know, the original permit was

23

granted in 1974, which is prior to the adoption

24

of the Coastal Zone Management Act in Hawaii.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's irrelevant to what we
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are discussing.

2

MR. HART:

I am not saying it is not but it has to be

3

some

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

please --

6

MR. HART:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

Wait.

One moment -- one moment,

Okay, fine.
You know, we are having a

8

question-and-answer period here, and I will not

9

tolerate either the applicant or the

10

Councilmembers interrupting anyone.

11

MR. HART:

Okay.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MR. HART:

All right.

Proceed.

I -- I just don't know why the State

14

Department of Land and Natural Resources didn't

15

require the issuance of a Special Management

16

Area permit prior to the issuance of their --

17

the basically construction permit for the house.

18

I don't know that.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

20
21
22
23
24
25

That's all I wanted to say.
Do you have a copy of the

1988 CDUA?
MR. HART:

I don't.

I probably have it in this file,

I don't have it right in front of me, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Could you get us a copy of

that?
MR. HART:

We could,

I am sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

2

I have one other question.

3

Are they -- are they providing this

4

5

6
7
8
9

this residence and its yard for weddings?
MR. HART:

For weddings?

No, not at all.

used as a residence.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Just for private use, and

they don't use for weddings.
MR. HART:

No, they do not.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you very much.

Thank you.

12

Any further questions?

13

Ms. Tavares?

14

It's only

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman,

I am going to

15

request that you defer this item.

16

some questions that have come up and some

17

information that's going to be forthcoming.

18

I hope that the Members will, if they have got

19

further questions or questions that came up

20

today,

21

questions in writing so that the next time we

22

have it all ahead of us and we don't spend over

23

an hour discussing this particular thing.

24
25

There are

And

just as a reminder, to put those

There are other people here with permits
or applications that are waiting for us to rule
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1

or make a decision about theirs, and there seems

2

to be a lot of questions on this one.

3

would respectfully ask that you defer this item

4

at this time.

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

So I

The Chair concurs at this time

6

because there are too many questions that we

7

know that Corporation Counsel and the Planning

8

Department are going to have to give in writing.

9

And I realize the applicant has waited a

10

long time, but it is unfortunate that we are at

11

this point right now.

12

those that have the questions, Ms. Anderson,

13

will, in a timely manner, in writing, to the

14

Chair of this Committee, so we may at the next

15

posting be able to move right along.

16
17
18
19

And I would hope that

Is there any objection to deferring this
item?

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS (excused:

RH,

DK, DM).

20
21

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

22
23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

25

This item is deferred.

Members--

Mr. Chair, can we take a -

could we have a short break?
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CHAIR CARROLL:

All right.

You know, we will take

2

our morning break early, a ten-minute recess.

3

We stand in recess.

4

RECESS:

10:08 a.m.

5

RECONVENE :

10:20 a.m.

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

(Gavel.)

(Gavel. )

This Land Use Committee

7

meeting of February 15th, 2006 is now back in

8

session.

9

10

ITEM NO. 40:

DISTRICT BOUNDARY AMENDMENT, CHANGE IN
ZONING, AND CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR
"BANYAN TREE BED & BREAKFAST" (MAKAWAO)
(C.C. No. 02-55)

11

12
13

CHAIR CARROLL:

Members, our next item, is LU-40,

14

District Boundary Amendment, Change in Zoning

15

and Conditional Permit for Banyan Tree Bed &

16

Breakfast, Makawao.

17

A summary, on June 1st, 2005, this

18

Committee met to consider a request for a

19

District Boundary Amendment, Conditional Change

20

of Zoning, and Conditional Permit, by Marty

21

Herling for the operation of a seven-room

22

transient vacation rental operation known as the

23

Banyan Tree Bed & Breakfast, on approximately

24

2.102 acres, at 3265 Baldwin Avenue.

25

At that meeting, the Committee voted to
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1

recommend that the revised proposed District

2

Boundary Amount bill and the revised proposed

3

Conditional Change in Zoning bill be passed.

4

The consideration the Committee -- the Committee

5

requested certain information from the

6

Department of Planning, then deferred

7

consideration of the revised proposed

8

Conditional Permit bill pending further

9

discussion.

10

Specifically, the Committee requested a

11

supplemental -- a supplement to the Department's

12

correspondence dated February 13th, 2002,

13

listing conditions the Department will recommend

14

to the Maui Planning Commission for the

15

inclusion of the State Land Use Commission's

16

Special Use Permit, additional conditions the

17

Department recommended for inclusion into the

18

Conditional Permit bill but which had been

19

omitted, and lastly, a revised land zoning map.

20

The Planning Director responded to the

21

Committee's request by correspondence dated

22

June 22, 2005, noting six additional conditions

23

for incorporation into the Conditional Permit.

24
25

The Committee requested and received
further revised proposed Conditional Permit
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1

bill, which the Members have by correspondence

2

dated June 29th, 2005,

3

Corporation Counsel.

4

from the Department of

The Committee met on July 7th, 2005, to

5

further consider this matter,

and again deferred

6

action on a Conditional Permit bill.
The Committee requested an opinion from

7

8

the Department of Corporation Counsel as to

9

whether Chapter 2.94 of the Maui County Code

10

applied to the transient vacation rental

11

operation.

12

The Committee is in receipt of the

13

Department's response dated February 6th, 2006.

14

The Department of Corporation Counsel concluded

15

that the Banyan Tree is not subject to the

16

affordable housing requirements of Chapter 2.94

17

MCC.
We will now hear a five-minute

18
19

presentation from the applicant, following which

20

from the Department, and then we will have

21

public testimony.

22
23
24
25

If the applicant or the representative
could please come forward.
MR. SUMMERS:

Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of

the Council,

I appreciate the opportunity to be
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1

here today to represent our client, Mr. Marty

2

Herling.

3

land use planner with Chris Hart & Partners.

4

This would be our third time that we

My name is Michael Summers.

I am a

5

have presented this project to the Council, and

6

so you should be familiar with it, and I won't

7

spend too much time summarizing the project.

8

This is a bed and breakfast use.

9

proposed approximately one mile to the south of

10

Makawao Town -- or to the west of Makawao Town.

11

And it's in a unique area.

12

area.

13

community.

14

2.10 acres.

15

lands.

16

It's

It's a historic

It's in the Sunnyville -- or Sunnyside
The project site is about
It's surrounded by agricultural

On the north of the property site there

17

is one residence.

18

separated from the Banyan Tree by about 294

19

feet,

20

environment.

21

That particular residence is

so it is a very Open Space-type

The property was historically used as a

22

plantation manager's house.

It was acquired in

23

1994 and converted to a B&B use.

24

originally constructed by Maui Agricultural

25

Company, so it has a very rich historic heritage

It was
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associated with it.
That house has been used by Mr. Herling

3

since 1999 as a bed and breakfast, home.

4

purchased the property in 1999, and that's when

5

he contracted our firm to prepare the necessary

6

permits to continue operating the residence as a

7

bed and breakfast.

8

with the County in 2001, and we went to the Maui

9

Planning Commission.

10

He

We did submit an application

The Planning Commission recommended

11

approval for a State Land Use District Boundary

12

Amendment and Change in Zoning and Community

13

Plan Amendment and State Land Use Commission

14

Special Use Permit, and deferred

15

action on the Special Use Permit.

16

or deferred

And so, we are here today to request

17

your approval for the Change in Zoning and the

18

Conditional Permit.

19

any questions you might have about the project.

20
21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

I would be happy to answer

Thank you.

We will now calion the Planning
Department.
MS. LOUDERMILK:

Ms. Loudermilk.
Good morning, Chair and Members.

Just to briefly add on to the
presentation, is that what we have before us is
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1

the District Boundary Amendment, Change in

2

Zoning, and the Conditional Permit for the

3

continued operation of the Banyan Tree Bed &

4

Breakfast.

5

structures and requesting a total of -- of seven

6

rooms to be utilized for this purpose.

It's utilizing two separate

Once the Council takes action on the

7
8

Change in Zoning, District Boundary Amendment,

9

and Community Plan Amendment -- excuse me,

10

Conditional Permit, we will then take this

11

matter back before the Maui Planning Commission

12

for action on the Land Use Commission Special

13

Use Permit.

14

additional information that I want to provide to

15

you.

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.
Thank you.

Ms. Nakata, do we have anyone signed up

17
18

And that pretty much concludes the

for testimony on this item?

19

MS. NAKATA:

No, Mr. Chair.

20

CHAIR CARROLL:

Is there anyone in the audience that

21

wishes to give testimony on this agenda item?

22

Seeing none, if no objections, we will close

23

public testimony.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Public testimony is now closed.
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Members, I am opening up the floor to

question or comment.

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

Mr. Chairman.

Yes.
Oh,

I'm sorry.

Thank you.

I believe that the last time we were

7

talking about this application, we were awaiting

8

an opinion from Corp. Counsel, a written

9

opinion.

So if we could have Mr. Giroux briefly

10

go over the opinion and what the results were,

11

and then we will await your recommendation.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MR. GIROUX:

14

Mr. Giroux.

Thank you, Chair.
Our opinion is included in the packet

15

dated February 6th, 2006.

16

answer is that Corporation Counsel didn't find

17

that it -- that imposing the affordable housing

18

requirement found under 2.94 would be proper in

19

this context.

20

Basically, the short

As far as the short reasoning, we looked

21

at -- we looked at the face of statute of 2.94,

22

and there was two sections that we had to look

23

at, basically, the imposition section and then

24

the exclusion section.

25

imposition section, we found an ambiguity as far

In looking at the
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1

as within the definitions that were used in that

2

section; therefore, we had to use certain

3

analysis in order to find out what we needed to

4

do with that.

5

And basically, as put in the memo, we --

6

we heavily relied on the -- on the Supreme

7

Court's, when they are looking at ambiguities or

8

trying to define statutes in statutes, which is

9

applicable when we are trying to look at

10

ordinances, and I just want to read it, you know

11

just to give you a large overview of basically

12

what the analysis would be under these types of

13

situations.

14

It says when construing a statute, our

15

foremost obligation is to ascertain and give

16

effect to the intention of the legislature

17

obtained primarily from the language contained

18

in the statute itself.

19

statutory language in the context of the entire

20

statute and construe it in a manner consistent

21

with its purpose.

22

doubleness of meaning, or indistinctiveness and

23

uncertainty of an expression used in a statute,

24

an ambiguity exists.

25

And we must read

When there is doubt,

In construing an ambiguous statute, the
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1

meaning of the ambiguous words may be sought by

2

examining the context with which ambiguous

3

words, phrases, and sentences may be compared in

4

order to ascertain their true meaning; moreover,

5

the courts may resort to extrinsic aids in

6

determining legislative intent.

7

the use of legislative history as an

8

interpretive tool.

9

the reasons, the spirit of the law, and the

One avenue is

This court may also consider

10

cause which induced the Legislators to enact it

11

to discover its true meaning.

12

And so we tried to frame this -- this

13

memo in that context as far as looking at -- at

14

the face of it, finding that there was

15

coming out with a decision that there

16

ambiguity.

17

definition which excludes the bed and breakfast

18

from 2.94 -- the 2.94 definition of hotel.

19

Coming to that conclusion, that 2.94 did not

20

define bed and breakfast within that statute,

21

left us with an ambiguity.

22

first,
lS

an

The ambiguity would be in the

it

Further looking at the whole, the bill

23

as a whole, and looking that there was

24

exclusions which excluded smaller units or -- or

25

smaller projects,

it was within the context of
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1

the statute as a whole that it wouldn't make

2

complete sense to impose such a -- such a

3

requirement on a project that hypothetically

4

would have less impact than -- than larger --

5

larger projects.

6

So, in a nutshell, that's -- that's our

7

conclusion as far as why imposing the affordable

8

housing requirement of 2.94 wouldn't be

9

appropriate in this situation.

10

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Tavares.

12

Any further questions?

13

Mr. Molina.

14
15

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Mr. Chairman,

I wasn't here for the

16

meeting last time, if I recall, or if I was,

17

just here very briefly.

18

applicant a couple of quick questions,

19

Mr. Chairman?

20
21

CHAIR CARROLL:

Could I

Is there any objections to calling

the applicant forward?

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

just ask the

Proceed, Mr. Molina.
Good morning, Mr. Summers.

Has the applicant met with various
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1

members of the community, and if they have, can

2

you kind of expound on that and what has been

3

the outcome.

4

MR. SUMMERS:

Yeah.

We did have a meeting with the

5

Makawao Main Street Association, and it was in

6

September of last year, and it was a very good

7

meeting.

8

9

And basically, we presented the project
to them and took questions, and they did prepare

10

a letter.

I assume that you have received that.

11

It should be in your packet.

12

were very supportive of the project.

13

expressed the fact that the project serves the

14

local community.

15

have referred customers to the Banyan Tree Bed &

16

Breakfast.

17

impact on the community by having this

18

available.

19

supportive.

20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And overall, they
They

Several businesses in the area

And so they saw a real positive

So they were overall very

Okay.

And typically, the

21

clientele that go over to the Banyan Tree, and

22

they are usually for Upcountry activities; am I

23

correct with that?

24
25

MR. SUMMERS:

It's typically a different type of

client that would like to experience the
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1

Upcountry atmosphere, the historic plantation

2

character of the residence.

3

different type of niche that they market to.

So it is -- it is a

4

And oftentimes, again, you know, Marty's

5

customers happen to be folks that are, you know,

6

basically, suggested to stay there by, you know,

7

different businesses and adjacent property

8

owners, et cetera.

9

that respect, yes.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So it's somewhat unique in

And my last question.

11

Regarding traffic, a mirror,

12

traffic mirror there, because of the Upcountry

13

downhill bike tours that come down that area?

14

That's been

15
16
17

MR. SUMMERS:

I guess you have a

Yeah, that was installed in 2001,

Marty?

2002?

So it's about there

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

18

planned?

19

that --

20

MR. SUMMERS:

2001, yes.

So nothing additional is

I guess another mirror or anything of

No additional mirrors are planned.

21

There was some work on the bank to increase the

22

sight distance.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

24

25

Okay.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Anderson.

I saw your hand
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your hand up earlier.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

Oh, okay.

Any further --

Mr. Pontanilla.

5

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

6

for Public Works.

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

My hand was not up.

Thank you.

Maybe a question

Proceed.
In regards to Member Molina's

questioning about the sight around that the

10

curve, if the Department have any concerns or

11

I understand that the applicant had already done

12

some work and if it's

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15
16

Mr. Miyamoto.
-- sufficient for the Public

Works.
MR. MIYAMOTO:

17

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
In discussing this with our Engineering

18

Division, they did do a site visit initially

19

back in I guess it was July of 2005, when they

20

previously came here, and I asked them to look

21

at specifically those specific issues.

22

And yes, without the mirror -- without

23

the mirror, the sight distance would be very

24

limited.

25

study recommended cutting of the slope and

And the preliminary, the original
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1

trimming of the vegetation so that sight

2

distance can be optimized.

3

To the left, which is the mauka-bound

4

direction, the sight distance was adequate.

5

was primarily in the makai side of the property

6

that the sight distance was limited.

7

mirrors help improve that sight distance as it

8

increases the distance by giving them a better

9

angle at seeing traffic as it approaches in the

10

uphill direction.

11

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

12
13

14

But the

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Any further discussion before the

Chair gives his recommendation?

15
16

It

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah.

I would like to ask

17

Public Works, in their October 2000 letter, they

18

recommended conditions and one of which was that

19

grading be done on both sides of the driveway to

20

improve sight distance.

21

been done?

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

23

MR. MIYAMOTO:

24
25

Was that -- has that

Mr. Miyamoto.
Yes, Mr. Chair.

Yes, it has been done to a certain
degree.

Obviously, to

to eliminate the
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1

mirror, they would certainly have to grade even

2

back further than they already have, and

3

possibly install retaining walls just to protect

4

the developable area.

5

certain amount of grading that has occurred to

6

help improve that sight distance.

7

installation of the mirror does help address the

8

sight distance.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So there has been a

And the

And so does the sight

distance now meet the County Code?

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

12

MR. MIYAMOTO:

Mr. Miyamoto.
Mr. Chair,

I currently don't have that

13

information before me.

14

provide that.

15

But I can certainly

But the installation of the mirror did

16

increase the sight distance beyond the

17

previously measured distance of 135 feet.

18

the -- if I am not mistaken,

19

required was somewhere up around the 250 feet of

20

sight distance.

21

that angle at which the -- someone coming in and

22

out of the property can look to see oncoming

23

traffic.

24

confirm with our Engineering Division.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

And

I think the

And the mirror does increase

But it's something that I have to

Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Well, you know, you are

2

saying in your 2000 letter that a hold harmless

3

agreement indemnifying the County will be

4

should be executed should the final sight

5

distance not be adequate to meet County

6

standards.

7

You know,

I have driven this road many,

8

many times, and I know that this is a very

9

dangerous turn.

And I think that it's only

10

responsible for the County to make sure that the

11

sight distance on this turn is going to be

12

adequate, that it meets County standards.

13

Because we are putting people's lives in danger,

14

not just the bicyclists on the road, and the

15

people who are commuting up and down that road

16

and live on that road, but the guests that will

17

be staying there.

18

So I want some assurances that they can

19

give us sight distance that meets County

20

standards.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

MR. MIYAMOTO:

23

Mr. Miyamoto.
Mr. Chair.

Not having that memo right in front of

24

me at this moment, but based on what you are

25

saying, it has been the Department's practice
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1

that when inadequate sight distance is

2

available, that, as you read, that the hold

3

harmless agreement is provided acknowledging the

4

less-than-optimal sight distance.
In this situation, they did install a

5

6

mirror, and -- which was done after the

7

initial -- that correspondence, and it's

8

something that as this project progresses, we

9

will be looking into as to whether or not

10

that

11

agreement needs to be there,

12

signing as suggested by the -- the applicant's

13

traffic engineer -- yeah, traffic engineer

14

provided.

15

the standard County hold harmless

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

or additional

You know, that mirror has

16

been there for many, many, many years, many,

17

many, years.

18

mirror ameliorates the fact that they are going

19

to have up to, what is it, 17 people at anyone

20

time staying there?

So I don't see how having that

21

And that is not my main concern.

22

main concern is that they are -- they are asking

23

permission to have large events.

24

year.

25

My

12 times a

They have -- they have withdrawn that?
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

MS. LOUDERMILK:

3

Mr. Miyamoto or Ms. Loudermilk?
Mr. Chair, let me -- I am better

able to answer that question.

4

The initial request that came in did

5

include special events, but as part of the

6

intervention in the State Land Use Commission

7

Special Use Permit process, that was deleted.

8

And we will now -- there will be no more special

9

events on the property.

10

We will have I believe a maximum of

11

seven rooms available in which a total of --

12

maximum total of two people per room, so that

13

would be 14 persons at full occupancy.

14

So just a clarification that that was

15

the initial request.

16

intervention, the settlement agreement, that

17

was

18

be -- be the special events at this location.

19
20

was set forth.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Robyn.

As part of the

So there will no longer

Okay.

Thank you for that,

I appreciate that.

21

MS. LOUDERMILK:

You're welcome.

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So if I could go back to my

23

questions to Mike, you know, the very fact that

24

the County is asking for a hold harmless

25

agreement just sticks in my craw, because
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1

basically what we are saying is we want to

2

abdicate our responsibility to make sure that

3

that we are approving something to County

4

standards, and should something happen, we won't

5

get sued, the land owner would get sued because

6

we permitted him to operate below County

7

standards.

8
9

NOw, to me,

I

just cannot condone that

at all because we are here to protect the

10

public's interest and their health and safety in

11

any decision that we make.

12

going to blow off that responsibility by having

13

the applicant file a hold harmless agreement so

14

the County won't get sued, we are totally

15

abdicating our responsibility to the public and

16

to the people who will be using this property.

17

And if we are just

So, you know, the fact that there's not

18

going to be large meetings there,

19

will support this, but I want to know that the

20

sight distance on that turn, that very dangerous

21

turn,

I will -- I

is going to meet County standards.

22

I mean, we just cannot allow intensified

23

use on that turn unless we know there's adequate

24

sight distance because we're putting people's

25

lives at danger.
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So maybe Mr. Miyamoto can call

2

engineering and find out what they know.

3

should know that, Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

We

We will ask that information to be

5

available before first reading if this item

6

passes out.

7

8
9

Any further discussion before the Chair
gives his recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Chair.

Ms. Anderson.
I am sorry I am the only one

12

asking questions, but I think that's my job, so

13

that's why I am doing it.

14

I would like to know if Robyn can tell

15

us that -- that what they are requesting is --

16

falls within the bed and breakfast ordinance.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

MS. LOUDERMILK:

Ms. Loudermilk.
Mr. Chair, what is being requested

19

does not fall under the bed and breakfast

20

ordinance.

21
22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Anything further before I give my

recommendation?
Members,

I would entertain a motion to
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1

pass the revised proposed bill entitled,

2

FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL PERMIT

3

TO MARTY HERLING FOR A TRANSIENT VACATION RENTAL

4

WITHIN RU-1, RURAL ZONING DISTRICT, FOR PROPERTY

5

SITUATED AT 3265 BALDWIN AVENUE, HAMAKUAPOKO -

6

MAKAWAO, HAWAII," and a filing of the

7

communication.

8

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

10
11

CHAIR CARROLL:

So moved.
Second.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla,

seconded by Mr. Molina.
Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla.

12
13

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Yield to the Members.

Any further discussion on the motion?

Ms. Johnson.

15
16

"A BILL

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

When this item came before

17

us -- you know, and maybe other Members were not

18

there, but I had an opportunity to ask, you

19

know, many of the questions and also going into

20

discussion on this item.

21

Ms. Anderson does raise one of the points that

22

we made about the sight distance, and I know

23

that that was raised at the last meeting, that

24

there be compliance.

So I think that

Perhaps in another context, Mr. Chair,

25
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1

we should look at the entire issue of executing

2

hold harmless agreements, because as we have

3

seen in other instances, hold harmless

4

agreements do not protect the County at all,

5

Ma'alaea is a very good example.

6

and

So I would just say, in another context,

7

in another forum, perhaps that issue is very

8

important to raise because I believe

9

Ms. Anderson is correct; we should not be

10

entering into situations where we are putting

11

the public at risk, or we are looking at safety

12

issues, and then executing some kind of document

13

that sort of gets us off the hook.
So, Mr. Chair, that's all the comment

14
15

that I have on this particular measure.

16

you.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

Any further comment?

Mr. Molina.

18
19

Thank

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I will be supporting the measure on the

20
21

floor.

Mr. Herling,

I have heard and seen him

22

make a real effort, conscientious effort to

23

network with the community, and the area being

24

as historic as it is, he has done a real good

25

job in trying to preserve the past so we can
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learn about our history from way back when.

2

And I will ask the applicant,

3

Mr. Herling to help us, the County, to monitor

4

the situation with the embankment, and to ensure

5

that there's enough sight distance because of

6

the bike traffic and other traffic that goes on

7

down in that area.

8

9

And for me, having grown up in that
area,

I can definitely attest to, with the

10

increased amount of traffic, it could become a

11

concern in the future.

12

that many of the big special events that were

13

planned initially have now been taken out of the

14

application.

15

But I am glad to hear

So I believe this will be a good service

16

in that area.

17

Noeau and other Upcountry organizations that

18

sometimes ask their guests to, you know,

19

places in the Upcountry area.

20

mitigate traffic from Central Maui to the

21

Upcountry area.

22

the traffic concerns as well.

23
24

25

We do have places like the Hui

stay in

That way they can

So it does sort of help ease

So I will be supporting this, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.
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Ms. Tavares.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

Mr. Chair,

I

3

will be supporting this application also.

4

think there have been concessions made or things

5

changed that have made the project a much better

6

one for everyone involved.

I

We do have another side issue about

7

8

indemnification, but that's a huge issue that we

9

need to discuss in a

in a different setting,

10

perhaps in Committee of the Whole, because we do

11

have indemnification agreements all up and down

12

the County of Maui for everything.

13

going to look at that,

14

and figure out if our policies are correct or

15

not.

16

So if we are

let's look at in totality

The many questions that I had regarding

17

this project were discussed in the first and the

18

second meeting, and also discussed, and I was

19

satisfied with the responses that I have seen

20

and heard and gotten from both the developer and

21

the Department.

22

saying, that I had left was about the

23

application of the affordable housing

24

requirements.

25

And the only thing, like I was

So I feel very confident that -- I
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofe: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

75

1

appreciate the opinion that was given to us by

2

the Deputy Corporation Counsel.

3

clear up this particular issue because it will

4

come up over and over again as we wrestle with

5

these applications and also as we discuss the

6

transient vacation rentals possible or proposed

7

bills.
So I thank you for this opportunity to

8

9
10
11

It helped to

comment on the project, and I will be supporting
it, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Thank you.

12

Any further discussion from the floor?

13

Ms. Anderson.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I would like to ask just one brief

15
16

Thank you, Chair.

question before I make my

co~~ent,

if I may.

17

Mr. Miyamoto, do you know if -- if any

18

further grading to increase the sight distance

19

would threaten the monkeypod trees that are

20

along that road?

21

historic.

22

MR. MIYAMOTO:

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

MR. MIYAMOTO:

25

Because they are quite

Mr. Chair -Mr. Miyamoto.
At this time,

I am unprepared to

answer as I really
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1

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

2

MR. MIYAMOTO:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

4

MR. MIYAMOTO:

You don't know.

-- didn't consider that at that point.
Do you know?

We will make it a point on the next

5

visit to look at that,

6

if it

7

slope that's steeper, it could damage the root

8

system of the tree, the slope could,

9

weather, could slough off, and that tree could

you know,

see how it might impact,

if the grading results in a

in wet

10

be impacted.

So it's a concern we will look at

11

when we discuss it with the applicant.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14
15

Okay.

Thank you.

We will get that information before

first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

16

I am going to be supporting this, my

17

maln concern is the safety of the -- of that

18

roadway.

19

a historic residence in this area, particularly

20

that it's not going to be used for big events.

21

And I appreciate that the applicant was willing

22

to scale back what they intended to do,

23

that, apparently, they have come to agreement

24

with their neighbors.

25

very historic,

But I think it's an appropriate use of

and

The Sunnyside area is

and anything that could be done
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1

to maintain these properties I am in full

2

support of as long as we are not putting anybody

3

at risk.

4

you, Mr. Chairman.

5

6
7

So I will be supporting this.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank

Thank you.

Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes,

I

just have one final

8

question because I was trying to recall, what

9

was the length of the permit, the Conditional

10

Use Permit?

11

MS. LOUDERMILK:

12

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

MS. LOUDERMILK:

15
16

One year.
It is just only one year?

Ms. Loudermilk.
I believe it was -- the initial

recommendation was one year.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Because we have been having

17

this issue come up before, and because of the

18

comments that were made at another meeting,

19

Mr. Chair, at this time,

20

that the Conditional Use Permit be extended for

21

a five-year period.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24
25

I would move to amend

Second.

Been moved by Ms. Johnson, seconded

by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Discussion, Ms. Johnson.
You know, because of the
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1

difficulties now that I have seen and people

2

have called my office about the difficulties

3

that they are having because we are in this

4

transition and drafting the,

5

extension of the transient vacation rental

6

ordinance and dealing with some issues in rural

7

and agricultural areas for B&B's,

8

that when this has gone to this expense, that

9

five years is the least that we could do.

I guess, the

I

just think

So I

10

am hoping that the membership will support this.

11

Thank you.

12
13

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Further discussion to the amendment?

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I am sorry, Mr. Chair, but I

15

cannot support this amendment.

16

there is a grave safety issue that we need to

17

see how this is going to work out.

18

not heard yet what the -- if the sight distance

19

meets County standards, and because of that,

20

cannot support five years.

21

see this again in a year and see how it worked.

22

And then give them five years.

23
24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

I think that

And we have

I

I think we need to

Any further discussion on the

amendment to the main motion?
Hearing none, all those favor,

please
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1

signify by saying aye.

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Let the record show we have five ayes

6

and one no.

7

VOTE:

Motion passes.

AYES:

8

NOES:
EXC. :

9

10
11

No.

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Johnson, Molina,
Tavares, Vice-Chair Pontanilla
and Chair Carroll.
Councilmember Anderson.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

12
13

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

14

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

The Chair would also entertain a

16

motion to amend the bill to change the year from

17

2005 to 2006, and to change the spelling of the

18

word "site," S-I-T-E, in Condition No.7, to

19

"sight," S-I-G-H-T.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

25

No objection.
So move.
Second.

Been moved by Mr. Molina.

Seconded

by Mr. Pontanilla.
Discussion, Mr. Molina.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

No discussion.

Further discussion?

All those in favor of the motion, please

4

signify by saying aye.

5

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

VOTE:

Opposed?

AYES:

8

NOES:
EXC. :

9

10
11

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Motion carried.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

12
13

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

14
15

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Anderson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You know, you just went

17

through that real fast, Mr. Chair, and didn't

18

even look my way when you asked for any

19

discussion,

20

to say before the vote.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

and I do have something I would like

The Chair apologizes to Ms. Anderson,

22

and we will calIon Ms. Anderson now.

23

have anything to say now?

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yes,

Do you

I will not be

supporting this because of the five years,
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1

Mr. Chairman.

2

safety issue,

I feel very strongly about the
I have spent many --

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10
11

What?
We're not on that.

We are talking -- Ms. Anderson.
We were talking about the

amendment.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Anderson, we are discussing the

amendment, Ms. Anderson.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

Oh, that amendment.

just called on and had discussion.

15

we have had this happen before.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

20
21

Fine.

This the amendment that the Chair

14

19

We're

on --

7

9

Point of order, Mr. Chair.

And I think

Sorry, Mr. Chair.

Thank you.

Now we are back to the main motion as
amended.
Ms. Anderson, now you may speak.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.

I will not be

22

supporting the main motion because of the five

23

years, Mr. Chairman.

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Further discussion?
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amended, signify by saying aye.

3

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

7

Opposed?
No.

Let the record show we have five ayes

and one no, Ms. Anderson.

Thank you, Members.

8
9

VOTE:

AYES:

10

NOES:
11

EXC. :

13

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

14

ACTION:

12

15

Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
Counci~ember Anderson.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed Conditional Permit bill, and
FILING of communication.

16
17

ITEM NO. 32:

18

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR A BUSINESS
OFFICE FOR AN INTERIOR DESIGNER
(WAILUKU)
(C.C. No. 06-9)

19
20

CHAIR CARROLL:

All right.

Members, moving along, we

21

now have Land Use Item 32, Conditional Permit

22

for a business office for an interior designer,

23

Wailuku.

24

Communication No. 06-9,

25

Director, transmitting a proposed bill entitled,

The Committee is in receipt of County
from the Planning
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1

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING STAN AND

2

HASSlE ZITNIK A CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR THE

3

CONVERSION OF A 180 SQUARE FOOT GARAGE TO A

4

BUSINESS OFFICE FOR AN INTERIOR DESIGNER FOR

5

PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE R-2 RESIDENTIAL

6

DISTRICT, AT 21-44 KAHOOKELE STREET, WAILUKU,

7

MAUl, HAWAII".
The purpose of the proposed bill is to

8
9

grant a request from Stan and Hassie Zitnik for

10

a five-year Conditional Permit for designer

11

for an interior designer on approximately 15,820

12

square foot lot at 2144 Kahookele Street,

13

Wailuku, Maui.
We will hear a five-minute presentation

14
15

from the applicant following by the Planning

16

Department, then we will be taking public

17

testimony.

18

MR. ZITNIK:

Good morning, Chair and Council Members.

19

Thank you for this opportunity to come before

20

and you explain our use of our property.

21

My wife is an interior designer.

22

has worked for many companies in the community,

23

has decided to become an entrepreneur and open a

24

business for herself.

25

as a home-use business and have the business

She

We decided to start off
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1

inside our home.

2

And then decided to convert our garage into use

3

for that office space, where she would be mostly

4

doing clerical work, which would be working at

5

the computer and doing -- working with samples,

6

and designing for clients, and then visiting

7

clients at their residence for their

8

consultation.

9

It basically is an office.

And we don't feel that there would be

10

any adverse impact into our community.

11

gone through the process with the Zoning

12

Commission, and the Planning Department.

13

have spoken with our neighbors and have not

14

received any complaints from the neighbors that

15

we have spoken with, and we welcome any

16

questions, and thank you for your time.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18
19

We

Thank you.

Planning Department.
MS. CUA:

We have

Ms. Cua.

Mr. Chair, Members of the Council, the

20

Planning Commission held a public hearing on the

21

Conditional Permit on November 22, 2005.

22

that meeting, one person testified in support of

23

the application, and in addition, the Department

24

had received one letter in support of the

25

application.

And at

We did not receive any testimony

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofe: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

1

2

85

or letters in opposition to the application.
Originally, to be consistent with our

3

procedures, the Planning Department recommended

4

to the Commission that the Conditional Permit be

5

valid for a period of one year.

6

after hearing the application and the testimony,

7

voted to recommend to you granting of the

8

Conditional Permit for a period of five years.

9

And that is reflected in the proposed bill.

10

The Commission,

The Council -- first of all, the minutes

11

of that meeting was transmitted to you on

12

January 17th, 2006.

13

requested that we comment on one basic issue,

14

first being that the applicant represented to

15

both the Planning Department and the Planning

16

Commission that no meetings with clients would

17

be occurring on the property, no business

18

transactions would be occurring on the property,

19

and that they do not intend to store any

20

inventory or furniture on the subject property.

21

They have storage elsewhere.

22

In addition, Council staff

Council staff asked the Department why

23

those were not included as conditions, and if

24

there would be any objection to including that.

25

The Department has no objections to including
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1

those as conditions.

2

language for you.

3

the conditions would read that as represented by

4

the applicant, no meetings with clients and/or

5

business transactions shall occur on the

6

property.

7

storage or inventory of furniture shall occur on

8

the subject property.

9

We have presented the

Basically, we propose that

An additional condition, that no

There is an additional condition

10

included in the bill requiring the applicant to

11

develop the property in substantial compliance

12

with the representations made to the County

13

Council, which would be another condition that

14

would support that.

15

but I think it's fine.

16

including all of those conditions.

17

It's a little redundant,
We have no objection to

The one additional thing I wanted to

18

point out, the property is zoned R-2 Residential

19

District.

20

does not permit this use outright.

21

Conditional Permit or the intent of the

22

Conditional Permit is to provide the opportunity

23

for you to consider establishing uses that are

24

not specifically permitted within a given use

25

zone where the proposed use is similar,

The Residential District ordinance
The
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1

or compatible to those permitted uses and which

2

has some special impact or uniqueness such that

3

its effect on the surrounding environment cannot

4

be determined in advance of the use being

5

proposed for a particular location.

6

that the proposed use doesn't create any

7

significant impacts on the neighborhood.

8

So I conclude with that for now,

9
10
11

And also

and I

am available to answer any questions you may
have.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Ms. Cua.

12

We will now open public testimony.

13

Ms. Nakata,

14

MS. NAKATA:

is anyone signed up?

Yes, Mr. Chair, three people have signed

15

up to testify on this item.

16

William P. Caroll, to be followed by Martha

17

Ferris.

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

The first is

When you come to the microphone,

19

please pronounce your name clearly for the

20

record.

21

minutes, you will be notified you have one

22

minute to include.

23
24
25

You have three minutes.

At three

BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY .
MR. CAROLL:

Hi, my name is William Carollo

I

am

here today to speak in favor of this requested
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

88

1

variance and to comment on a letter addressed to

2

the Chair from Mr. Dan Clark.
I live on Kalua Road, and have for about

3
4

nine years now, which is about one block below

5

the 2144 Kahookele Street residence.

6

I retired six years ago, and for the

7

past six years,

8

a day for exercise throughout Maui, throughout

9

Wailuku.

I walk about four or five miles

Every day,

I pass this residence,

10

twice a day at least, sometimes more.

This is

11

one of the nicest houses in the entire

12

neighborhood.

13

yard.

14

pass there, the two vehicles owned by the

15

Zitniks are always parked on their property,

16

never in the street, never.

It is a very well-maintained

And one thing I have noticed each time I

This letter from Mr. Clark claims that

17
18

he's concerned about parking on this narrow

19

street, and that the needs -- see -- congested

20

traffic flow through these streets.
I find it very ironic and amusing,

21

even,

22

that Mr. Clark would comment on this since he

23

parks his vehicles constantly on this narrow

24

street, completely blocking one lane of traffic

25

there.

At one point, he had a flatbed truck
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1

parked there that completely blocked one lane of

2

that street, and it was parked there 24 hours a

3

day for at least two years.

4

he would have the audacity to write this letter.

5

It is just beyond belief.

6

It just amazes that

Mr. -- Mr. Clark has since moved where

7

he used to park the flatbed truck one block

8

closer to the County building.

9

concerned here about the overflow parking for

He seems

10

County employees.

11

truck on the street, 24 hours a day, not 75 feet

12

from the Maui County employee parking lot,

13

taking up one full lane of that street.

14

truck is parked there every single day,

15

six days a week,

16

visible from the windows outside this Chamber.

17

You can see that truck parked there all day, all

18

night,

19

me that he would have the audacity to write such

20

a letter.

21

He to this day parks his

24 hours a day.

six days a week.

That
five and

It's plainly

This is just amazing to

And I am certainly glad that it's

22

pointed out that this woman's small business

23

there, her little tiny office, would create no

24

traffic in this area.

25

she goes to the homes and businesses of her

As an interior decorator,
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1

clients.

They don't come to her house.

2

would even know that there was a business of any

3

kind there.

4

MS. NAKATA:

Three minutes.

5

MR. CAROLL:

There's no traffic in the area.

6
7

Questions?
CHAIR CARROLL:

8
9

MR. CAROLL:

Thank you.

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

MS. NAKATA:

13
14

Any questions for the testifier?

Hearing none, thank you, sir.

10

12

No one

Ms. Nakata.

The next testifier is Martha Ferris to

be followed by Dan Clark.
MS. FERRIS:

Good morning, Chair and Members of the

Land Use Committee.
I live on -- at 448 Lauone Place.

15

As

16

you see from the letter that Dan Clark had

17

written, is included, that street is included on

18

his letter to the Chair.

19

And I just want to say that there's a

20

lot of items in this letter that I don't agree

21

with.

22

around our street about the facility being used

23

for

24

But I was under the assumption that they were

25

going to enlarge this little garage into

I did sign a petition that was going

by the Zitniks for interior decorating.
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1

something huge, and there was going to be all

2

kinds of things going on.
And -- but I did make a note on my --

3

4

when I signed the petition, that as long as they

5

had on-site parking, as long as there was no

6

parking on the street by her customers,

7

wouldn't be a problem.

8

9

it

So then -- but that was the only
document I had seen until this last week,

and

10

this last weekend.

11

of Mr. Clark's letter,

12

documentation that you are required to send out

13

by the Planning Department for Conditional Use

14

Permit.

15

receptacle,

16

information, and it was returned to the Zitniks,

17

and I didn't get this information until just

18

this last weekend.

19

That's -- I received a copy
and also the original

Evidently, because I don't have a mail
I didn't receive all the

I -- I, also, as the last gentleman

20

testified, do walk down that street for

21

exercise.

22

parked in front of that little facility.

23

There's not even a lot of cars parked in her

24

property, you know,

25

impact to our community.

During the day, there's no cars

causing any kind of jam or
I haven't seen that.
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And I have seen it before, with the

1

2

other trucks and things that were there from

3

when Mr. Clark lived on that corner.

4

real problem.

That was a

There are people on Kahookele that park

5

6

in front,

7

you know, taking up all the street space in

8

front of their property and on the side of their

9

property.

10

on the side, there, by the Zitniks,

So as far as I am concerned,

I don't see

11

any impact or -- or problem as far as my husband

12

and I are concerned.

13

as long as it stays the way it is -- it has been

14

operating for a year without us seeing any kind

15

of, you know, anything going on.

16

there, you know, at least once a day.

17

and there's open parking during the day in front

18

of that space.

19

And that little business,

And I walk by
And

In this letter from Mr. Clark to the

20

Chair,

I don't agree --

21

MS. NAKATA:

Three minutes.

22

MS. FERRIS:

-- that it's a flood zone.

That area is

23

not a flood zone for us.

24

parking, you know, unless you get rid of that,

25

you know, we are going to be jammed up anyway.

And the County
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2
3

Okay.

Thank you.

CHAIR CARROLL:

Any questions?

Thank you.

Any questions for the

testifier?
Ms. Anderson.

4
5

93

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Martha,

6

coming.

7

all as much as we miss you?

8

9

MS. FERRIS:

My question to you is do you miss us

Well, sort of, yeah.

I don't miss this

cold room.

10

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

11

for coming Martha.

12

MS. FERRIS:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

for

Yeah, it is cold.

Thanks

Sure.
Any further questions for the

testifier?

15

Hearing none, thank you so much.

16

Ms. Nakata.

17
18
19

MS. NAKATA:

The next and last testifier who is

signed up is Dan Clark.
MR. CLARK:

Good morning, Chairman Carroll and

20

Council Members.

21

opportunity to testify on behalf of my neighbors

22

and myself regarding our concerns and

23

disagreement with this LU-32 Conditional Use

24

Permit.

25

I thank you for this

Over the last 25 years, we have come to
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1

the Council for speed limit signage in this

2

area,

3

for the kids moving up the street to school.

4

reducing the speed limit, and the concerns

Then, you know, parking considerations,

5

where I came to the Council to try and allow for

6

parking just on one side of the street to allow

7

emergency vehicles to pass through.

8

and ambulance.

9

that they have had to stop and turn around.

Our fire

In the past, it's been known

10

And just to address the parking with

11

regards to myself, I have always been in the

12

allowed parking area on the street.

13

are built with smaller garages and, you know,

14

for Model A's.

15

so, therefore, there was a need to park, you

16

know, out on the street, but then again,

17

allowed area in the street.

18

The homes

My house is 75 years old.

And

in the

The concern at the corner, there, was

19

that people parking beyond the sign that

20

indicates no parking from here to the corner.

21

So I wanted to address that.

22

I have walked the neighborhood for

23

signatures to install speed bumps and then to

24

also to -- you know, the road had not been paved

25

in 40 years, and we have recently accomplished
Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofe: (808)524-2090 Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

95

1

the paving in the Kahookele and Kiele Streets

2

with speed bumps, so I thank you for your

3

participation and vision over the years

4

regarding these

these issues.

Currently, the Planning Department is

5

6

working with the Zitniks at 2144 Kahookele

7

Street to allow for a commercial business in our

8

residential neighborhood.

9

moved into Mrs. Tom's former home, we asked if

When the Zitniks

10

they had any intentions putting in a commercial

11

business, primarily that of a bed and breakfast,

12

and they said no at that time.

13

were because there was an allowed bed and

14

breakfast in the old Makino(?) house, up on High

15

Street.

16

a residence.

17

And our concerns

And they said no, we plan to keep it as

Well,

it became evident that they were

18

less than truthful when they had a contractor

19

close up the garage and install an office.

20

When we checked with the Planning

21

Department, there were no permits at the time,

22

so they were requested to cease operation and --

23

of the business, and apply for a

24

post-construction permit, and then pursue the

25

business variance through the Planning
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Department, which is the correct means.
While I was --

2
3

MS. NAKATA:

4

MR. CLARK:

Three minutes.
While I was attending a work-related

5

water environment conference in D.C., there was

6

a notice sent to the neighborhood requesting

7

that all those concerned attend a November

8

Planning Department meeting.

9

my neighbors,

And talking with

it was apparent that a number of

10

them could not attend the meeting and were not

11

properly notified.

12

Today I have provided you with a

13

petition to deny this variance, and I was not

14

able to see all of the neighbors, and due to

15

it -- being away again for my conference

16

obligations in Honolulu.

17

Please consider that these long-time

18

residents wish to keep their neighborhood

19

residential and allow

20

vehicles to navigate these zero-lot-line roads.

21

MEO presently requires Mrs. Munekiyo to

re and ambulance

22

walk from the end of Lauone Street to the County

23

building parking lot to get her senior

24

transportation.

25

MS. NAKATA:

That's because of --

Four minutes.
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1

MR. CLARK:

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3
4

Thank you.

May I continue, Mr. Chair?

Your time is up,

sir.

One sentence,

if you could please just conclude.
MR. CLARK:

Okay.

There have been times when the

5

the refuse trucks could not pick the rubbish up.

6

So these neighbors are very concerned.
In closing,

7

I would ask that, you know,

8

the -- in maintaining the existing geographic,

9

cultural, and community lifestyles, you are

10

limiting the management -- managing that growth

11

in the -- in the district there, that we ask

12

that you deny the application.

13

that you consider approving the application,

14

that the condition of the five years be returned

15

to its original one year so that we can see how

16

this facility operates, and its impact.

17

that the parking be required off-street for

18

that

19

you for the additional time.

20

this allowed variance.

CHAIR CARROLL:

And in the event

Mr. Chair, thank

Thank you.

21

Any questions for the testifier?

22

Mr. Molina.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24
25

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Clark.
MR. CLARK:

And

Yes, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thanks for being here.

I

2

presume you have had some discussions with the

3

Zitniks on this concern of yours.

4

biggest concern is, again, the parking.

5

Zitniks have said that they are not going to

6

have any of their clients come to the street or

7

come to the residence.

8

mean,

9

part, that they are not going to have clients

So your
The

So can you tell us -- I

I don't know if you were aware of that

10

come to the house.

11

you now, now that they are not going to have

12

clients come to the home?

13

MR. CLARK:

So how does that sit with

Well, when the -- the business was

14

operating, during the time it was operating,

15

there were delivery vans that's were delivering

16

product to the house, UPS vehicles, the large

17

vans.

18

the of

19

for whatever reason, you know, there was

20

activity there, yeah.

21

And then there was, you know,

activity at

ce there where people were visiting and

But I want to -- I know that these

22

variances are given in, you know,

23

areas but our residential -- residential area

24

there is declining, you know,

25

are encroaching in on, you know,

residential

in -- businesses
residential
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1

areas, and the quality of life changes.

2

taxes will be affected is one concern, you know,

3

for those individuals that are on fixed incomes.

4

How the

You know, and if it does affect them

5

getting MEO, you know, transportation, you know,

6

that present -- that situation is present on

7

Lauone right now, and not as a

8

of the Zitniks', you know, present thing.

9

just that people are in there, have more than

as the fault
It is

10

one vehicle, and they are trying

11

they try to park where they can, and so the MEO

12

vehicles will not come down to pick her up.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

MR. CLARK:

you know,

Okay.

And the garbage trucks have now stopped

15

picking the rubbish up if they can't get

16

through.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Clark.

18

You have answered my earlier question, but thank

19

you for being here.

20

MR. CLARK:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22
23

Thank you.
Further questions for the testifier?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

The

24

previous -- another testifier had alluded to

25

your vehicle being parked on the street.
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still being parked on the street there?
MR. CLARK:

Not at that place.

allowable parking, Councilmember Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

MR. CLARK:

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9
10
11

12

Allowable or not, it was

parked there, right?

6

8

And those were

Yes, ma'am, it was.
And could the MEO bus get

around your truck?
MR. CLARK:

Yes, ma'am.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

If nobody else was parked on

the other side?
MR. CLARK:

You couldn't park two vehicles.

It's--

13

these roads are substandard and they don't have

14

adequate, you know

15

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

16

MR. CLARK:

17

18
19

But if you were to walk the street there,

you will see.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
Thank you.

20

MR. CLARK:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

Right.

testi

I have walked the street.

You answered my question.

Yes, ma'am.
Any further questions for the

er?
Ms. Anderson.

23
24

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

25

MR. CLARK:

Mr. Clark -

Yes, ma'am.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

-- you seem to be concerned

2

about the commercial use of the property and the

3

parking, even though we have been assured and

4

it's part of their conditions that people are

5

not going to be parking on the street, that she

6

will be not servicing clients, that she is only

7

using this as an of

And so I am wondering, are you -- are

8
9

ce space.

you aware that if Mrs. Zitnik wanted to use this

10

space for a day-care operation, that she could

11

do it without any kind of permit at all?

12

could serve up to six children in that

13

residentially zoned area with no permit at all.

14

MR. CLARK:

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

MR. CLARK:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You are asking me if I am aware of that?
Yeah.

No.
So,

I think she is

18

underutilizing what she could do and I

19

wanted you to be aware of that.

20

MR. CLARK:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22
23

She

just

Thank you.
Any further questions?

Mr. Pontanil1a.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Well, it is not a question,

24

but what was said earlier by the Planner here,

25
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CHAIR CARROLL:
testifier?

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

MR. CLARK:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

Oh, no.

No questions to the

testifier.

5

8

Do you have any questions for the

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Could you hold until we finish with

public testimony, please?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

11

MS. NAKATA:

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

Sure.

Anybody else signed up, Ms. Nakata?

No, Mr. Chair.
Is there anyone that wishes to give

13

testimony at this time on this agenda item?

14

Seeing none, no objection, we will close public

15

testimony.

16

Public testimony is now closed.
END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

Mr. Pontanilla.
Thank you.

Well, earlier, the Planner had mentioned

20

that, you know, a possibility of adding two new

21

conditions to the existing ones that's there.

22

One of them is no meetings with clients and/or

23

business transactions shall occur on the subject

24

property as well as that no storage of inventory

25

of furniture shall occur on subject property.
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And I think if we do add those

1

2

conditions, some of the problems that are in the

3

area can be mitigated in regards to the number

4

of vehicles, you know, coming on the street,

5

going to the prem [sic].

6

alleviate some of the problems.
As far as the -- I will wait on the

7
8
9

I think this will help

other one.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.
The Chair will note that if a motion

10

does reach the floor,

11

ask one of the Members or to proceed with those

12

two amendments, which would be 7 and 8.

13

discussion?

Further

Mr. Molina.

14
15

that he had intended to

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Mr. Chairman, when it is

16

appropriate, can I ask a question from Public

17

Works?

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

You had sent a letter to them

20

dated January 11th.

I don't know if we got a

21

response in writing from them,

22

wondering if Mr. Miyamoto was prepared to

23

respond to your letter, which was the

24

January 11, 2006,

25

Permit for the business office for the interior

so I was

subject, the Conditional
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designer in Wailuku.

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

MR. MIYAMOTO:

Proceed, Mr. Miyamoto.
Mr. Chair, I am looking at, from the

4

binder, there was a response provided, it's

5

dated January

6
7

8

9
10

January 31st, 2006.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
I apologize.
MR. MIYAMOTO:

Okay.

I must have missed it.

January 31st.

I think it is just prior to the

petition that one of the speakers was referring
to.

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

MR. MIYAMOTO:

Okay.

If you want, I could summarize what

13

the letter

14

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Yeah, could you, if you would,

15

Mr. Miyamoto, I am still having a problem

16

finding it.

17

dated January 31st?

And it was -- your response was

18

MR. MIYAMOTO:

Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

MR. MIYAMOTO:

Okay.

The original RFS that was created for

21

the subject property was submitted anonymously,

22

anonymously.

23

has been that anonymous requests for services

24

were not going to be addressed because we would

25

not have adequate ability to call the requester

And the Administration's policy
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1

and discuss what the concern, specific concern

2

was.

3

So at the time that the RFS was created,

4

the response was disregarded because we could

5

not contact the requester to gain further

6

information.

7

But because the concern was also raised

8

at Planning Commission, we did send our

9

engineers out to look at it.

10

And in the response, it basically says

11

there is an existing, what appears to be like a

12

retaining -- small retaining wall, about 12 to

13

18 inches high, that holds the roadway back and

14

also provides a little bit of a curbing to help

15

channelize the road drainage away from this

16

property.

17

resurfaced, additional asphalt has been placed,

18

and that little lip of curbing has been

19

decreased by the level of asphalt that was put

20

on there.

21

As the roadway has recently been

A recent -- I guess a recent event that

22

occurred, from what I understand, is that one of

23

our refuse trucks, when making that turn, went

24

over the curbing, and the rear wheel -- I am not

25

sure if it was the rear wheel or the front
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1

wheels got stuck within the property and had to

2

have a heavy-duty tow vehicle remove the

3

vehicle.

4

was evident that someone had placed an

5

additional, what looks like about an eight-inch

6

asphalt block on top of the existing curbing,

7

and that was not something that the County had

8

done, and in research,

9

it is within the County right-of-way.

10
11

12

And when we went out to look at it, it

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

it wasn't permitted and

So to your knowledge, you

don't know who put that concrete block,
MR. MIYAMOTO:

I guess?

At the time, we did not research into

13

who did it, but it appears rather evident it

14

might have been the property owner because of

15

what may have happened with the refuse truck

16

entering his property, and maybe some of the

17

surface runoff entering into his property.

18

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

agaln on this that was --

20

MR. MIYAMOTO:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22
23

And who's the property owner

No,

I think it is the applicant.
The applicant.

the property owner,

Okay.

Same as

okay.

I guess the intent was to make sure the

24

runoff goes along the roadway and not onto the

25

property itself.

I can only guess that might
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1

have been the rationale for putting that

2

concrete block there.

3

MR. MIYAMOTO:

That and to,

I guess, because the

4

vehicle had entered into their property.

5

there is about a 12 to 18 inch dropoff behind,

6

inside the property, and the County vehicle did

7

get stuck and had to be extricated from that

8

area.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And

As long as I guess the

10

block is within -- there is no violation, then,

11

is there?

12

MR. MIYAMOTO:

Technically, it was done without a

13

County permit, because they are within County

14

right-of-way.

15

would require a permit of some sort to construct

16

within the County right-of-way, work within the

17

County right-of-way property, and it would have

18

to come through us for review.

19
20
21
22

It's, obviously it would -- that

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Any further discussion

before the Chair gives his recommendation?

23

The Chair would entertain a motion to

24

pass the proposed Conditional Permit bill and

25
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Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

1

108

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

I'm sorry, Mr. Chair.

2

ask a question of the applicant?

3

Before you -- before you make your

4

recommendation.

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

7

Can I

I apologize.

Proceed.
Thank you.

Good morning, Mr. Zitnik.

8

MR. ZITNIK:

Good morning.

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

First question,

regarding the

10

I guess, the last testifier mentioned concerns

11

about deliveries.

12

you have deliveries?

13

design business, how often do you have

14

deliveries made?

15

MR. ZITNIK:

Typically about what time do
I guess with an interior

When we submitted our permit or

16

application to the Planning Department, and

17

looking at the deliveries, the best way I can

18

describe it is not more than normal deliveries

19

to the house.

20

product that's going to be -- or furniture

21

that's going to be sold, and the deliveries are,

22

if it's like a -- Federal Express may come by

23

and do an overnight envelope size with maybe

24

some material samples.

25

We are not receiving, like,

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So these are not real bulky
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items that are being delivered or anything?

2

MR. ZITNIK:

No.

No.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And then my other

4

question was related to the question I asked

5

from Public Works relating to the concrete

6

block.

7

MR. ZITNIK:

Can you expound on that further?
Yes, thank you.

I thought I was trying

8

to do something good, which was in my property

9

area, and I am sort of in disagreement with

10

where the property line is, because I see a pin

11

in the road when we purchased the home and saw

12

it is surveyed.

13

our property.

14

I thought that was on -- within

When we purchased the home, there was a

15

concrete-formed retaining wall that did hold the

16

road back and about 18 to 20 inches drop between

17

our property.

18

couple-inch-high curbing that kept water out

19

from our property, and also sort of, you know,

20

designated where the roadway was.

21

And there was maybe a

The rubbish truck did land in our

22

property, and it was the rear wheel, trying to

23

make that turn, and it was because someone was

24

illegally parked across the street.

25

is sort of an issue there, but -- with cars

And parking
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1

there.

2

And because that really isn't a clear area,

3

because we had to trim our hedge back so that it

4

doesn't really show where that road ends, the

5

rear axle went in there.

6

extricate it with a large crane to get the

7

garbage truck out of our property.

8
9

And the driver tried to make the turn.
and

And they did have to

And it did go up against the utility
pole, so we were sort of concerned about that as

10

well.

And Maui Electric did come out and

11

inspect the pole.
Then after that, we experienced -- and

12
13

this was, maybe -- maybe a couple of years ago,

14

we had some very heavy thunderstorms and a lot

15

of flooding in the area,

16

Maui County with the several days of heavy

17

rains.

18

repaved -- I'm sorry -- yeah, Kiele Street was

19

repaved, and then Kahookele Street was repaved.

20

or you know, around

This was after Kiele Street was

And what that did was that raised the

21

road level to that curb that we had.

22

in that paving the one street first -- Kiele

23

Street comes down from the County building, and

24

Kahookele Street comes from High Street down.

25

And by

And what it did was it raised Kiele
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1

Street higher than Kiele [sic] Street.

2

Kahookele Street water would come down and turn

3

left onto Kiele Street, and sort of make a run

4

towards our property.

5

So now

Well, one evening when we had that

6

really bad rains, my wife woke me up and said,

7

oh, my gosh, the house is -- you know, water is

8

getting in the house, so I had these, you know,

9

visions of our, you know, old house being

10
11

with a lot rain, and it was just a little leak.
So but fortunately,

I looked outside,

12

and my whole yard was flooded, almost up to our

13

foundation, and

14

Because right up, all the water running off

15

Kahookele Street was coming into our property.

16

a couple of feet under water.

And so I had to go out there on that

17

night and put sandbags and boards and

18

everything.

19

with asking them come back and resolve this,

20

thought that this retaining wall was within my

21

property, and I put a tile -- one row of tile

22

blocks on top.

So rather than burdening the County

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24

good intentions,

25

Mr. Zitnik.

I

And that's how that came about.
I see.
I guess.

Okay.
Okay.

I think you had
Thank you,

Ralph Rosenberg Court Reporters, Inc.
Ofc: (808)524-2090
Fax: (808)524-2596

LU 2/15/06

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

1

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

Thank you.

Ms. Anderson.

3
4

112

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I would just like to ask one

brief question.
I see on your site plan that you have

6
7

parking spaces on your property,

8

spaces.

9
10

MR. ZITNIK:

four parking

And how many adults are in your home?
Two.

We have two vehicles.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You have two vehicles.

11

you have two additional off-street parking

12

spaces on your property?

13
14

MR. ZITNIK:

So

We have space available in the area to

park, yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any further questions before the

17

Chair gives his recommendation?

Hearing none,

18

the Chair will entertain a motion to pass the

19

proposed bill entitled,

20

GRANTING STAN AND HASSlE ZITNIK A CONDITIONAL

21

PERMIT FOR THE CONVERSION OF A 180 SQUARE FOOT

22

GARAGE TO A BUSINESS OFFICE FOR AN INTERIOR

23

DESIGNER FOR PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE R-2

24

Residential District, AT 2244 [sic] KAHOOKELE

25

STREET, WAILUKU, MAUl, HAWAII," and to file the

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE
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communication.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

6
7

So moved.
Second.

It's been moved by Anderson, second

by Ms. Johnson.
Discussion, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I would like to commend

8

this -- this couple for coming forward and --

9

and getting a permit to use their garage for her

10

interior design business.

11

County, Mr. Chairman, do business out of their

12

homes, and very rare does -- does anyone come

13

forward and try to get it permitted.

14

People allover Maui

So I am fully in support of this.

I

15

think, when you look at the lot, it is a huge

16

lot in comparison to the rest of the

17

neighborhood.

18

would like to see them also be allowed to have

19

at least one person visit her office for

20

whatever purposes because they have two

21

additional off-site parking spaces.

22

They have off-street parking.

I

And as I mentioned earlier, with no

23

permit whatsoever, a person can have six

24

children in a day-care situation in their home

25

right now.

And that's -- that is a lot of cars
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coming and going.

2

So I would hope that we could allow them

3

at least that, one -- one visitor at a time to

4

conduct her business in the garage.

5

very low impact.

6

coming forward and doing this.

7

support.

8

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

And again,

It seems

I thank them for
So I am in

Thank you.

At this time, the Chair would like to

10

entertain a motion that -- and it was what

11

Mr. Pontanilla was talking about, but I would

12

like to state the motion because I am going to

13

make a little addition inside there.

14

The Chair would entertain for a motion

15

to amend the bill to add two new conditions,

16

Numbers 7 and 8, as referenced in the Department

17

of Planning correspondence dated February 7th,

18

2006, the conditions would read as follows:

19

No.7, that no meeting with clients and/or

20

business transactions shall occur on the subject

21

property; Condition 8, that no storage of

22

inventory or furniture shall occur on the

23

subject property, and I would add to that, and

24

no delivery of inventory or furniture shall be

25

made to the subject property.
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1

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

So moved.
Second.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla,

4

seconded by Mr. Molina.

5

Mr. Pontanilla.

6

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

It's not in regards to the

7

motion that was just made, but the address that

8

was read earlier,

9

you said 2244.

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

I think we need to amend that,

It should be 2144.

Thank you.

2144 Kahookele Street.

11

If there's no objections, if you will allow the

12

staff to make that correction.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you.
Mr. Chair.

Yes.
The amendments that you just

18

made verbally, could we see those in writing,

19

please?

20
21

CHAIR CARROLL:

You want it -- do you want me to read

it again, or do you want it written out?

22

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay,

Yeah, you can read it again.

I will read it again.

24

The No. 7 condition is that no meetings

25

with clients and/or business transactions shall
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occur on the subject property.

2

No.8, that no storage of inventory or

3

furniture shall occur on the subject property

4

and no delivery of inventory or furniture shall

5

be made to the subject property.

6
7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman, that motion is

on the floor, right, for the amendment?

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

Yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

The motion is on the floor.
May we request that those two

10

be separated, so we deal with one condition at a

11

time?

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

Yes.

There's been -- let's see.

13

right.

14

the two conditions in the motion.

15

objection?

All

There's been a request that we separate

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

All right.

Any

We are dealing with

18

condition No. -- proposed new Condition No.7,

19

then, that no meetings with clients and/or

20

business transactions shall occur on the subject

21

property.

22
23

Discussion?

Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Mr. Chairman, I think this

24

is a little too far over the edge.

25

rather draconian.

I think it's

They are coming forward to
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1

get a Conditional Permit to use their garage for

2

business purposes, and yet we are telling them

3

they can't transact any business purposes.

4

You know, basically, why would she get a

5

Conditional Permit if she is just going to go

6

there and do office work?

7

in our homes.

We all do office work

8

So I -- I would like to allow them to

9

have at least one client at a time be able to

10

visit their property in order to meet and to

11

transact business.

12

amendment unless you change it to allow at least

13

one client at a time because they have plenty of

14

off-site parking.

15

to the neighborhood.

16

kids playing in the yard.

17

fair to allow that.

18
19
20
21

CHAIR CARROLL:

There would be no disruption
And it's far less than six
So I think it's only

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Can I ask the Planning Department a

22

question?

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

So I don't support that

Proceed.
With regards to this

condition, was this something that was initiated
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1

by the Planning Department or was this the

2

applicant's discussion?

3

MS. CUA:

Actually, if you recall my original

4

comments, we were asked by your staff why we

5

didn't include it as a condition.

6

because we didn't feel it was acceptable; it was

7

because that's what the applicant represented.
So this all stems from the applicant

8

9

representing that they have no intention to do

10

that.

11

for this use being supported.

12

It wasn't

That, I believe, was their justification

You know, one thing I just want to have

13

you keep in mind, in terms of impact, this

14

property is a residential property, R-2 zoned.

15

The minimum lot size is 7,500 square feet.

16

7,500-square-foot lot, you can do one dwelling,

17

and one ohana dwelling.

18

exceeds 15,000 square feet, they could probably

19

do two main dwellings and an ohana dwelling.

20

that maybe helps to kind of put it -- put it

21

into perspective.

22
23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

On a

Because this lot is --

So

Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Further discussion to the amendment?

Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Yeah, I know that the

2

amendments, Mr. Chair, which I do appreciate are

3

in response to representations that were made

4

during the

5

and I -- I do appreciate that, but -- and it

6

in normal circumstances,

7

just what you are doing, putting representations

8

into conditions.

9

the Planning Commission hearing,

I would like to see

But I really think that it's

10

unnecessary.

11

pressured because of -- because of

12

representations that were being made in the

13

neighborhood, that they felt pressured to say

14

that they would not transact any business and

15

they would not have any meetings on the

16

property.

17

And you know, maybe they felt

But I can't see how them meeting with

18

one client in this garage is going to cause any

19

impact to the neighborhood.

20

think it's

21

Maybe five years down the road, she may find

22

that it's more convenient for her to have a

23

client come to her office for a discussion

24

rather than have to get in her car and drive

25

someplace.

So I -- I

it's going too far,

just

and who knows?
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So I just think it's fair to give her

2

that option, so I won't be supporting the

3

amendment.

4
5

6

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

Any further discussion?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, Mr. Chair,

I would like

to amend the amendment.

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

9

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That condition.

And I kind

10

of wish we had it in front of us, so it would be

11

easier to amend.

12

no more than one client at a time may be at this

13

location.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

16
17
18

But my amendment would be that

Second.

Been moved by Ms. Tavares, seconded

by Ms. Anderson.
Discussion, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, and I don't know if

19

that's like a totally new condition or, you

20

know, as far as procedure goes.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

Seems to be a new condition.

22

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

It's the same kind of topic,

23

but we are taking a slightly different approach

24

to this; rather than restricting to zero, that

25

we at least allow one.
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CHAIR CARROLL:

All right.

We take the motion as

2

substituting that language for the amendment,

3

the proposed motion on the amendment.

4
5

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Does the Department have any

objection to that?
MS. CUA:

We don't have any objections.

7

So somebody would just have to come and

8

leave their husband at home,

9

have a husband and wife come?

10
11

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

MS. CUA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

if you

Is that your -

Oh, well, we could say no

more than one vehicle.

12

I guess,

Maybe that's better.

Yeah.
Okay.

Mr. Chair, if you

14

would allow that correction, to no more than one

15

vehicle.

16

17
18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Could you please restate the motion

for the record?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

No more than one

19

vehicle at a time may be at this location --

20

client vehicle.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

Right.

And that is Condition No.7,

22

which we have on the floor right now.

23

an amendment to the amendment.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

That is

It is a substitution, I

guess.
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That's what we need to address.

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

4

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I appreciate Member Tavares'

5

clarification on this proposed condition,

6

because I don't know if I am going to stir the

7

pot up a little bit, here, but how can we tell

8

who is a client and who is just a relative

9

visiting, you know?

10

So I think it's better we just put that

11

vehicle, because they are entitled to have a

12

visitor,

13

know, so -- anyway,

14

just occurred.

I would think, or to have family,

you

just thought -- that thought

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

Ms. Anderson.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Of course, I am totally in

17

support of this, and thank you, Member Tavares,

18

for doing that.

19

And I do wish we had it in writing

20

because I think you also said no meetings with

21

clients or business transactions shall occur.

22

So I mean, you know,

23

if they have a couple that they are -- she is

24

dealing with a client, and the client wants to

25

write her a check,

I think it is appropriate

I think she should be allowed
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1

to do that.

So I

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3

whole thing.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

This would substitute for the

So your amendment

5

substitutes the whole thing, so we are doing

6

away with that part, too?

7

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10

Okay.

All right.

Great.

Thank you.

We have an amendment to

the amendment.
Mr. Pontanilla.

11

12

That's my intention.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Yeah, thank you, Chair.

13

will be supporting the amendment.

14

Condition No.7, as read before, like the

15

Planner had said, this came from the clients

16

themselves, so -- just to clarify that.

17

you.

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19
20
21
22
23

I

And as far as

Thank

Thank you.

Any further discussion on the amendment
to the amendment?
Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair.

Just wanted to ask if this condition is

24

okay with the clients,

25

applicants.

I mean with the
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1

CHAIR CARROLL:

2

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

3
4
5

The applicant --

so I would take that as a yes.
CHAIR CARROLL:

all right with them.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

9
10
11

Okay.

They are indicating the condition is

6

8

Oh, they are both nodding yes

Thank you.

Any further discussion on the

amendment to the amendment?
MS. NAKATA:

Mr. Chair, could staff just clarify the

language, please?
CHAIR CARROLL:

The amendment is to amend the

12

original amendment to the main motion, which was

13

that no meetings with clients and/or business

14

transactions shall occur on the subject

15

property, and the amendment to amend that

16

states -- and you could read that again, please,

17

Ms. Tavares.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

20

Yeah, no more than one client

vehicle at a time may be at this location.
CHAIR CARROLL:

21

Thank you.

All right.

All those in favor of the motion to

22

amend the amendment, please signify by saying

23

aye.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

2

NOES:
EXC.:

3
4

5

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

6
7

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to amendment to main
motion.

8
9
10

CHAIR CARROLL:

We are now back to Condition No.7,

the amendment to the main motion.
Further discussion?

11

Hearing none,

all

12

in favor of the amendment to the main motion for

13

Condition No.7, please signify by saying aye.

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

15

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Motion carried.

16
17

VOTE:

AYES:

18

NOES:
EXC. :

19
20
21

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

22
23

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

We are now back to the other --
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1

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

6

Amendment.

We are now going to
Condition 8.
Condition 8.

Yes, with Condition 8.

Thank you,

Mr. Molina.
Condition 8, which is that no storage of

7
8

inventory or furniture shall occur on the

9

subject property and to deliver and -- and no

10

deliveries of inventory or furniture shall be

11

made to the subject property.

12

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

15

Mr. Molina.

Second.

Moved by Mr. Pontanilla,

seconded by

Discussion?

Ms. Anderson.

16
17

So moved.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

I think inventory is a rather vague

18
19

word.

20

design books that she uses in her business

21

delivered there?

22

samples delivered there?

23

Does that mean that they can't have

CHAIR CARROLL:

That she can't have fabric

Inventory in the traditional

24

sense would be, being referred to as inventory

25

of materials used for whatever, chairs,
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furniture.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Can we just leave it with

3

the "furniture" then,

4

is large items and not -- and not

5
6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

so that it's clear that it

Yeah, Mr. Chair -- oh,

I am

sorry.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

8

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I would move to amend -Furniture and furnishings.
-- that just -- we just take

10

out the word "inventory," and just leave it with

11

"furniture."

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

All right.

Then it would read,

"That

13

no storage of furniture shall occur on the

14

subject property and no delivery of furniture

15

shall be made to the subject property."

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

it .

18

CHAIR CARROLL:

19
20
21

You have to make the motion.

I second

You

have made the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Move to amend as just read,

Mr. Chair.

22

CHAIR CARROLL:

23

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

24

CHAIR CARROLL:

25

That sounds great.

Do we have a second?
Second.

All right.

This is a motion to amend

the main motion -- excuse me -

to amend the
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amendment to the main motion.

2

All right.

3

Ms. Anderson.

4

Discussion?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

You

5

know,

6

woman from being able to do business, of which

7

she's come here to get a Conditional Permit.

I don't think we want to prevent this

8
9

And I -- I was myself in the design
business in my previous life and know that you

10

need a lot of ancillary materials as far as

11

fabrics and design books and wallpaper books,

12

and things like that should not be a problem.

13

She could get it delivered by any UPS truck that

14

delivers anybody's mail order items.

15

it's only fair to allow that on this -- on this

16

permit.

17
18
19
20
21

CHAIR CARROLL:

So I think

Thank you.

Any further discussion on the amendment
to the amendment to the main motion?
Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

just have one question, and

22

that would be that we are talking specifically

23

about furniture related to her business, and not

24

that we are prohibiting from getting furniture

25

delivery if she wanted to get a new sofa or
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something.
CHAIR CARROLL:

I would hope common sense would

prevail and that would be assumed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Well, from some of the

5

testimony,

I am not sure that common sense

6

always does prevail.

7

CHAIR CARROLL:

8

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

9

Are you asking the question of -I just want to put it on the

record that this only applies to her business so

10

that it's very clear in the record what the

11

purpose and intent of this condition is.

12

CHAIR CARROLL:

13

MS. CUA:

Ms. Cua.

Mr. Chair,

I can just comment briefly.

The Conditional Permit request, which

14
15

you are acting on, is to convert that garage to

16

a business.

17

this permit is for the business only.

18

So the conditions that you place on

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

And, Ms. Cua, that

19

would mean, though, that if let's say she wanted

20

to get some furnishings for her own use, though,

21

even though it's related to her business, it's

22

not going to be resold or anything, that would

23

not be a problem?

24
25

MS. CUA:

It's for her own personal use, so it should

not be a problem.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you.

3

Further discussion?

4

Hearing none, to the amendment to the

5

amendment to the main motion, all those in

6

favor, please signify by saying eye.

7

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

Motion carried unanimously.

9

10

Opposed?

VOTE:

AYES:

11

NOES:
EXC. :

12
13
14

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

15
16

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to amendment to main
motion.

17
18

19
20

CHAIR CARROLL:
amended.
MS. NAKATA:

We are back to the main motion as
Any further discussion?

Excuse me.

Mr. Chair.

Mr. Chair,

I

21

believe we are back on the amendment itself, as

22

opposed to the main motion as amended.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

MS. NAKATA:

25

I'm sorry, could you repeat that?

We are back on the amendment, to add

Condition No. 8 as amended.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

We just voted on the

furniture.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Okay.

So we haven't -- all right.

Thank you, Ms. Nakata.

I appreciate that.

We are back to Condition No.8, the

5
6

amendment to the main motion.

7

discussion on that?

Any further

Hearing none, all those in favor, please

8

9

signify by saying aye.

10

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

11

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Motion carried.

12
13

VOTE:

AYES:

14

NOES:
EXC. :

15
16
17

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Counci1members Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

18

19

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

20
21
22
23
24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:
as amended.

NOw, we are back to the main motion
Further discussion?

Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Mr. Chairman, I would just

like to reiterate the -- what I think
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1

Ms. Anderson was talking about, that they have

2

come forward to legalize or to permit properly

3

what they want to do with their home or in their

4

home,

5

because we haven't come to the home occupation

6

bill yet in -- in our Planning Department,

7

Planning Committee.

and I hope that more people will do this

8
9

So I
forward.

I commend them for coming

It is a process that's arduous at some

10

times, but, you know,

11

happier.

12

out in support of what they are trying to do,

13

and that is a very, as I see, a very extremely

14

low impact type of activity.

15

I think it makes it all

I think their neighborhood has come

And yeah, we are all doing businesses in

16

our homes.

17

converted to an office, but I sure hope I don't

18

have to put a permit in for that, you know.

19

do have a bed in there,

20

every now and then.

21

So, you know,

I have got one bedroom

so I can sleep there

But I -- I do think that this sets a

22

good precedent for others to follow,

23

the Zitniks for coming forward and processing

24

this application.

25

I

CHAIR CARROLL:

and I thank

Thank you.

Thank you.
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1

Any further discussion?

2

Ms. Anderson.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I would just like to ditto

4

what Member Tavares said and wish them all the

5

good luck.

6

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

7

Further discussion?

8

Ms. Johnson.

9

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

I

just hope that when people

10

live near one another that they would be very

11

mindful of trying to respect one another and be

12

a little bit more tolerant of one another

13

because we all live in this community, and it is

14

a very tight neighborhood.

15

your neighbors or you talk stink,

16

to haunt you.

17

as my little sharing of a thought.

18
19
20
21

CHAIR CARROLL:

So when you alienate
it comes back

So I would just like to give that
Thank you.

Any further discussion on the motion

as amended?
Hearing none, all those in favor signify
by saying aye.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Motion carried.

24
25
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VOTE:

AYES:

2
NOES:
EXC. :

3
4

5

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

6
7

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed bill and FILING of
communication.

ACTION:

8
9

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

Members, we do not have time, unless

11

you think you can do this in six minutes, the

12

last item on the agenda, which I feel would be

13

very difficult.

14

to be recessing until 1:30.

With no objection, we are going

15

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

16

CHAIR CARROLL:

This Land Use Committee meeting of

17

February 15th stands in recess in this Chamber

18

until 1:30 p.m.

(Gavel.)

19

RECESS:

11:54 a.m.

20

RECONVENE :

1:38 p.m.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22

(Gavel.) This Land Use Committee

meeting of February 15th is now back in session.
Members, we have only one more agenda

23
24

item.

And Councilmember Tavares is excused.

25

She will be joining us later, in about a half an
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hour.

2
3

ITEM NO. 26:

CONDITIONAL PERMIT FOR "HALE HOOKIPA
(C.C. No. 02-115)
INN" (MAKAWAO)

4

5

CHAIR CARROLL:

Land Use Item 26, Conditional Permit,

6

for Hale Hookipa Inn, in Makawao.

We are in

7

receipt of the following:

8

No. 02-155, from the former Planning Director,

9

transmitting a request from Cherie Attix for a

County Communication

10

one-year Conditional Permit to operate Hale

11

Hookipa Inn, a transient vacation rental, on

12

approximately 21,079 square feet at 32 Pakani

13

Place, Makawao, Maui, along with a proposed

14

bill; correspondence dated June 23rd, 2005,

15

Department of the Corporation Counsel,

16

transmitting a revised proposed bill entitled,

17

"A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CHERIE ATTIX A

18

CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO OPERATE HALE HOOKIPA INN,

19

A TRANSIENT VACATION RENTAL, WITHIN THE COUNTY

20

R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, FOR PROPERTY SITUATED

21

AT 32 PAKANI PLACE, MAKAWAO, HAWAII".

22
23
24

25

The purpose of the revised proposed bill
is to grant the request.
We will have the applicant, followed by
the Department, followed by public testimony.
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will have five minutes to do her presentation.
MS. McLEAN:

I promised the Chair that we would do

4

our best to make you smile and laugh with

5

yesterday being Valentine's Day and all.

6

Before I begin formally,

I would like to

7

take the time to let you know that our

8

presentation will be offered to you in rhyme.

9

she

We wanted to make the extra effort with

10

something new or brilliant or crazy or crass, to

11

hold your attention and earn your support so

12

that this item could finally pass.

13

Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll,

14

Committee Members, staff and Administration,

15

am here to represent the Hale Hookipa Inn

16

Conditional Permit Application.

17

My name is Michele McLean,

I

as many of

18

you may already know,

representing owner

19

proprietor Cherie Attix, who is here today also.

20

We have been working on this application

21

since 2001, now approaching year five,

22

fully believe it should be supported, and for

23

this we will continue to strive.

24
25

and we

Through all this time, we have answered
every question that's been asked,

from the
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1

Administration, the Commission, and your

2

Committee, not an easy task.

3

the Is and crossed all the Ts as this project

4

has evolved, so please allow me to summarize the

5

concerns that all of us together have resolved.

6

We have dotted all

Hale Hookipa Inn in Upcountry Makawao is

7

a four-room B&B, and about 50 feet away, next

8

door,

9

historic guest house is listed on the State and

lives the owner proprietor, Cherie.

The

10

Federal registers of historic places, which have

11

very strict preservation criteria and Cherie has

12

cover all those bases.

13

Parking for her guests is provided per

14

the Code and on site.

15

stalls, she's got it just right.

16

Cherie offers only prepackaged goodies,

17

a snap, and it also means that she doesn't need

18

to install a grease interceptor or trap.

19

With four concrete paved
For breakfast
so it's

She has fire extinguishers, smoke

20

detectors,

and evacuation plans telling folks

21

where to go, and the two fire hydrants on Pakani

22

Place fulfill requirements for fire flow.

23

There are long-term tenants in the guest

24

house cottage and the cottage next door, and the

25

cook house will be used for storage and is not
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tied to the B&B use anymore.

2

Cherie is current on her GET and TAT

3

taxes and always will be, and she pays whatever

4

property taxes are assessed, even if these

5

change to hotel for every B&B.

6

A cesspool serves the only guest house

7

since all other structures have septic service

8

today,

9

order and conforms to the new standards of the

10

and the cesspool is in proper working

EPA.

11

Hale Hookipa does not negatively impact

12

neighboring properties.

There hasn't been a

13

fuss.

14

beautifully maintained.

15

a real plus.

16

Gomes home would have fallen into irrevocable

17

disrepair, and thus no housing whatsoever would

18

have been provided there.

19

structure is restored, and three long-term

20

residential units have been provided.

21

entrepreneurship and success, we should all be

22

supportive and excited.

23

businesses support her, even Gary Moore's, as

24

Cheri's guests patronize Makawao's restaurants,

25

shops,

Cherie's place is charming and
For the neighbors, it's

Without Cherie's presence, the

Instead, the historic

In fact,

With such

dozens of

services and stores.
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Mr. Chair and Committee Members, you

2

have all asked very good and important

3

questions, and in finding answers for you, we

4

also have learned lessons.

5

conforms to everything we know that you ask,

6

want, and demand,

7

the community's health,

8

have done all that we can.

Hale Hookipa Inn

and because you look out for
safety, and welfare we

We don't know what other questions you

9

10

may have today, but we will do our best.

11

Through these past five years, we have

12

definitely been put to the test.

13

strive to be fair and consistent in reviewing

14

all applications, and so we ask for your

15

consideration of Cherie's specific situation.

We know you

We request only one change to the

16
17

conditions, the permit duration of one year.

18

ask that it's been longer -- that it be longer,

19

since it's taken us five to get here.

20

Conditional permits provide a

21

case-by-case process tailor made to each

22

circumstance.

23

support and giving Cherie's application a

24

chance.

25

really, really ready to go.

And we would appreciate your

We ask to move forward today.

We are

So let's call for
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1

the question.

2

maha10.

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

Ms. Cua.

4
5

Chairman, Committee Members,

MS. CUA:

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Council, at

6

your June 29th, 2005 meeting, we -- we gave a

7

pretty extensive overview of the project and

8

went through all the conditions of the Planning

9

Co~~ission.

I will just reiterate very briefly,

10

the Planning Commission held a public hearing on

11

this matter February 26th, 2002.

12

recommended 12 conditions.

13

that.

14

of this Committee, in discussing the facts that

15

had changed with regard to when the application

16

was originally submitted to the Department as

17

opposed to when it came before this body, the

18

one major thing that had changed was that the

19

applicant no longer resided on the Tax Map Key

20

in question.

21

adjoining property and now resides on that

22

property.

23

They

We have gone over

I believe at the -- at the last meeting

And in fact,

she had bought the

And so we did have some discussion about
and at that time, the Planning

24

that, and

25

Department recommended an additional condition
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1

that the owner operator or the vacation rental

2

manager shall reside on the property, Tax Map

3

Key 2-4-18:063.

4

applicant proposed amended language to that that

5

would allow for the owner operator or vacation

6

rental manager to live within a distance of

7

75 feet.

8

and that's going to be a decision of that -- of

9

this Committee.

And I believe at that time, the

And I believe that's where we left it,

And although it is, as the applicant

10
11

mentioned, a case-by-case basis, the decision

12

that you make on that or on the issue of where

13

the owner resides, I believe, is going to follow

14

you in subsequent applications.

15

that's the only additional comments that we

16

would offer at this point in time.

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

public testimony?

20

MS. NAKATA:

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

22
23
24
25

Thank you.

Ms. Nakata, has anyone signed up for

18

19

So, you know,

No, Mr. Chair.
Is there anyone in the gallery that

wishes to give public testimony?
Seeing none, with no objection, we will
close public testimony.

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.
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CHAIR CARROLL:

Public testimony is now closed.

2

Members, we will now open up the floor.

3

Ms. Anderson.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Thank you, Chair.

5

I just want to follow up on what Ms. Cua

6

just reiterated to us from the previous meeting.

7

Has there ever been an attempt or even a

8

discussion of consolidating these two parcels,

9

which then would, you know, mean that she is

10
11
12
13

living on the property?
MS. CUA:

I don't believe so.

I think you might want

to ask that to the applicant.
Again, my involvement with this project

14

came when I was reassigned it, and when this was

15

scheduled for Committee in 2005, that's when I

16

went on the site inspection and found that she

17

had purchased the adjoining property.

18

you know, this -- the June 29th meeting

19

occurred, and we had this discussion.

20

don't recall.

21

have that conversation, but I

22

don't recall it.

23
24
25

And then,

So I

It doesn't mean that we didn't

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

just -- I

Then,

just

I will wait

and -- and ask the applicant about that.
Would it be possible to ask a question
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of Public Works?

2

CHAIR CARROLL:

Yes.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Or maybe what I will do

4

first is ask Ms. Cua, because

5

know if you would know either since you just got

6

on this, but how many buildings on this property

7

are operating off the cesspool?

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

MS. CUA:

well,

I don't

Ms. Cua?

I don't -- I don't know for sure.

I would

10

assume -- I would assume the main dwelling as

11

well as the additional structure they are

12

renting out, but the applicant is nodding her

13

head, so -- I am not really sure.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

15

MS. CUA:

16

Only one.

The long-term cottage?

She is saying only one, the main

house.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

18

the cesspool.

19

the applicant come down, Mr. Chair, so it is on

20

the record.

21
22
23

24
25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Just the main house is on

So then -- maybe we should have

Could the applicant or representative

please come to the podium.
Proceed, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So, Michele, the -- the

guest house is on a cesspool.

The long-term
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1

rental cottage on the same parcel, does it have

2

a separate cesspool, or what?

3

MS. McLEAN:

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

5

It has a septic.
It has a septic.

So that's

a newer cottage.

6

MS. McLEAN:

It's much more recent.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Great.

Yes.

Okay.

That answers

8

my question, because, you know,

I did want to

9

clarify that, in Ms. Chouteau's letter of --

10

excuse me -- Ms. McLean's letter of July 'OS,

11

she is citing

12

the EPA State Implementation Guidance Report

13

that says, you know, there's a new regulation

14

out that you have to -- you have to convert

15

cesspools to septic tanks if you serve more than

16

one unit or 20 -- up to 20 people.

17

that -- this is a problem for us in Maui Meadows

18

because people who are -- who have one cesspool

19

that services both their main dwelling and their

20

ohana unit, even if it's only four people

21

involved, they are still being required to put

22

in septic tanks.

23

that.

24
25

she is citing information from

So I

And I know

just wanted to clarify

And then I was going to also ask if -does -- does the owner ever intend to
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consolidate those two parcels?
MS. McLEAN:

She doesn't intend to.

The property

3

with the

4

herself, and the adjacent one where she lives,

5

she owns jointly with her brother and his wife.

6

So that's one complication.

with the inn on it, she owns

7

She just said to me that consolidating

8

is kind of expensive, so I would take her word

9

on that because I am not familiar with that.

10

And thirdly,

11

Public Works could clarify,

12

if they were to be consolidated, then there

13

would be four dwellings on the one property, and

14

I believe after the third dwelling, then

15

subdivision improvements get imposed, and I

16

don't know how that's done after the fact in a

17

consolidation, but that could be another

18

wrinkle.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

and this something I guess
I know that when

Yeah, that's a consideration

I hadn't thought of.
And the reason I was bringing that up

21
22

was that would solve our problem with having her

23

live off the property.

24

MS. McLEAN:

Right.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

But -- thank you.
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1

MS. McLEAN:

2

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

3

Okay.
So, Mr. Chair, if I could

just ask Ms. Cua.

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

Proceed.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

You know,

I understand what

6

you are saying, is that if we allow this to

7

happen, then we have got to consider it in

8

future -- future applications.

9

one of the things that's most important about

And I know that

10

about permitting these kind of operations is

11

that the -- the operator live on the property so

12

that they can take care of, you know, any

13

problems that might come up, and actually

14

prevent problems from happening.

15

But then, you know, and I agree with

16

you, Ann, that this could set a precedent.

17

then, on the other hand, we are always told that

18

we have to take everything on a case-by-case

19

basis.

20

this is quite unusual because it is an adjoining

21

property.

22

an imaginary line between these two properties

23

doesn't prevent her from being right there on

24

the property when needed.

25

But

So on a case-by-case basis, I think that

So I mean,

just the fact that there's

So I would support it,

just making clear
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1

that it's only because she is right there on

2

that same piece of land, whether or not it's a

3

separate parcel or not.

4
5

Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL:

6
7

Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you, Chairman.

Question for the Planning Department.

8
9

Thank you, Ms. Anderson.

Do you know when,

I guess, the property was

10

being considered for nomination for the historic

11

status, I guess back then, it was initially

12

proposed as a B&B, but now with this proposed

13

legislation to get the Conditional Permit and

14

the bill, would this reclassification proposal

15

trigger a Cultural Resources Commission review?

16

Are there any potential triggers?

17

MS. CUA:

I am not sure I am exactly following.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

MS. CUA:

Yeah.

The -- the structure has been put on the

20

register.

21

That's been done.

22

point, there's,

23

That was a choice of the applicant.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

So at, you know, at this

I believe, no need.
How about for any design and

24

construction changes, you know,

if they make

25
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Once it's -- once it's on the register,

2

there's very strict guidelines as to what you

3

can do to a structure.

4

case, you know, it has been registered.

But in this particular

If in the future,

5

she decides to do any

6

kind of improvements to the structure, you know,

7

it's going to have to possibly -- possibly come

8

before the Cultural Resources Commission, but

9

it's definitely going to have to meet State

10
11

requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

12
13

Okay.

CHAIR CARROLL:

And Mr. Molina, Condition 12 states

14

that there shall be no physical alterations to

15

the historic guest house, the Gomes residence,

16

without the prior approval of the Cultural

17

Resources Commission.

18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

19

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

And for the record, Ms. Tavares

20

joined us at 1:45.

21

not recognizing her earlier.
All right.

22

If not,

Thank you.

Excuse me for

Members, floor is still

23

open.

I will give my recommendation,

24

and then I think there are some amendments that

25

we might be making.
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that finger up over there.

I saw

Watching.

Chair will entertain a motion to pass a

3

4

revised proposed a bill entitled,

5

ORDINANCE GRANTING CHERIE ATTIX A CONDITIONAL

6

PERMIT TO OPERATE THE HALE HOOKIPA INN, A

7

TRANSIENT VACATION RENTAL, WITHIN THE COUNTY R-3

8

RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, FOR PROPERTY SITUATED AT

9

32 PAKANI PLACE, MAKAWAO, MAUl," and to file the

10

communication.

11

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

So moved.
Second.

Been moved by Mr. Pontanilla.

Seconded by Molina.

15
16

"A BILL FOR AN

Discussion, Mr. Pontanilla.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I was on the Planning

17

Commission when this thing got approved by the

18

Planning Commissioners.

19

time coming, like the applicant had said.

20

it's about time that we act on this particular

21

permit.

22

And it's been a long
And

I know that the structure in question,

23

in regards to the historic guest house, you

24

know, looking at the photos that was presented

25

to us earlier, it seems like the building is
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1

being kept quite well.

2

supporting the proposal.

3

CHAIR CARROLL:

So I am going to be

Before we go any further,

I have -- I

4

would like to entertain a motion to amend the

5

bill,

just to change the year from 2005 to 2006.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

7

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

8

CHAIR CARROLL:

9

Second.

Moved by Ms. Anderson, seconded by

Ms. Johnson.

10

So moved.

Discussion?

Hearing none, all in favor of the motion

11

to amend the main notion, please signify by

12

saying aye.

13

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

14

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Motion carried.

Thank you.

15
16

VOTE:

AYES:

17
18

NOES:
EXC. :

19

20

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

CounciLmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
CounciLmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

21
22

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

23
24

CHAIR CARROLL:

25

MR. FOLEY:

All right, Members.

Mr. Foley.

Mr. Chairman, the Water Department asked
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1

us to raise two items.

2

form of a question and that is whether or not a

3

backflow preventer has been installed.

4

One is basically in the

And then secondly, they said that they

5

need a copy of the floor plan in order to

6

confirm the fire flow calculations.
And there is a representative here from

7
8

the Water Department if any discussion is needed

9

regarding those two items.

And I don't know

10

whether it will be necessary to -- for either of

11

those to be a condition of approval or not, but

12

maybe the applicant could address the question

13

as to the backflow preventer.

14
15

CHAIR CARROLL:

Members, is there a request to bring

either the Department or the applicant down?

16

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

17

CHAIR CARROLL:

18

Could the Water Department please

come forward.

19
20

Yes, please.

Proceed, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I am just wondering if the

21

representative from the Water Department has

22

seen the fire flow calculations.

23

MR. NAKAMURA:

Yes, we have seen the fire flow

24

calculations, and we don't have any problem with

25

the fire flow calculation.

They seem
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methodology seems acceptable to us.

2

All we want to do is to confirm the

3

numbers that were used in the calculation and,

4

hence, the need for the drawings.

5

want to --

6

7
8

9

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That's all we

So you need to know

basically how many square feet the building is?
MR. NAKAMURA:

Not only that, but to take a look at

the fixture counts and all of that just to be

10

sure that, you know, it doesn't exceed the

11

five-eighth-inch water meter that currently

12

serves that building.

13

14
15
16
17

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So you need to look at a

site plan?
MR. NAKAMURA:

Yes,

just if they have a building plan

for that, that will help us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

I saw a site plan in

18

here, so that would be nice if we could just

19

confirm that right now, Mr. Chairman, so that

20

it's -- it's done.

21

CHAIR CARROLL:

It is attached to

Ms. Anderson, excuse me.

22

applicant has that,

23

calling her to the podium.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

I think the

if you wouldn't mind us

Yeah.

Well,

I am sure that

he could look at what Ms. Cua has in her binder.
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1

It's attached to the July 22nd correspondence.

2

July 22,

3

cesspool information card.

4

has something more specific than that that they

5

could provide us.

6
7

8

MR. NAKAMURA:

11

12

Unless the applicant

What is shown here doesn't show the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Oh,

fixture count.

Oh.

Could we ask the applicant to come up?
Maybe they could give us that information.
CHAIR CARROLL:

Could the applicant or their

representative please come to the podium.
Proceed, Ms. Anderson.

13

14

It is on the back of the existing

fixture count or anything like that.

9

10

'05.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Ms. McLean, can you give us

15

some information on -- first on the backflow and

16

then also on the number of fixtures.

17

MS. McLEAN:

We do not believe that there's a

18

backflow preventer installed on the property.

19

If that is a requirement -- we weren't aware

20

that it was needed, but if it is needed, then we

21

will comply.
I am assuming that you are looking at

22
23
24
25

the floor plan of the structure.
MR. NAKAMURA:

We are looking at the floor plan, but

we basically would like to see the building plan
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1

itself that would show, you know, all of the,

2

you know, the kitchen, bathrooms, and all these

3

kinds of things so we can get a -- we can go

4

through and check what was submitted by Wayne

5

Arakaki on the fire flow calculation.

6

That's all we want to do.

We don't

7

think there's going to be a problem, but we

8

just, for our own peace of mind, we just want to

9

check that out.
procedure for us.

10
11

MS. McLEAN:

14
15

Okay.

Is that something you wanted to

do now?

12
13

That's kind of like standard

MR.

NAKAMUR~:

Well,

I would have to take that back

to staff and have us evaluate and get back.
CHAIR CARROLL:

If it's all right with the Members,

16

we will request that they get that information

17

to the Department and we will have the report

18

before first reading, assuming that this passes

19

out.

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

That sounds good to me,

Mr. Chair.

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTION.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you.

24

Further questions?

25

Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Will there be an amendment to

2

extend to the five-year period?

3

your intended amendments?

4

CHAIR CARROLL:

5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Is that one of

It's -- the floor is open.
Okay.

At this point, then, I

6

would move to amend this particular application

7

to include a five-year period.

8

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

9

CHAIR CARROLL:

10
11
12

Second.

Been moved by Ms. Johnson, seconded

by Ms. Anderson.
Discussion, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No,

I think it is for, you

13

know, a very well-illustrated purpose that they

14

have been going through this for quite some

15

time, and I just think that because this has

16

taken a long period of time, I wouldn't want

17

them to immediately have to begin going through

18

the process again.

19

the five years.

20
21
22

CHAIR CARROLL:

So that's why I recommend

Any further discussion on the motion

to amend the main motion?
Hearing none, all those in favor,

23

signify by saying aye.

24

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

25

CHAIR CARROLL:

Opposed?

Motion carried.
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VOTE:

AYES:

2

NOES:
EXC. :

3
4
5

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

6
7

ACTION:

APPROVE amendment to main motion.

8

9
10

CHAIR CARROLL:
amended.

We are back to the main motion as
Discussion?

Hearing none, all those --

11

12

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

13

CHAIR CARROLL:

14

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Wait.

Excuse me.

Wait.

I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.

Mr. Chair, you know, the

15

backflow preventer and the veri

16

these fixtures is not a condition that we are

17

considering.

18

want to make sure that they verify all that by

19

first reading.

20

that a backflow preventer is an easy thing to

21

do, that they can get that accomplished within

22

the next two weeks?

23

on that?

24

MR. NAKAMURA:

25

easy?

cation of all

You just stated that you

So I

you

just want to make certain

Could you give some light

I don't know.

What do you mean by

They would have to install this device
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1

after the meter, you know.

2

to get a contractor to come in and put that

3

installation.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

So,

So they would have

I guess, by easy,

I mean

5

is it -- is it something that you could assume

6

they would be able to accomplish in two weeks?

7

MR. NAKAMURA:

If the contractor can, you know, break

8

free and do it,

9

to do it in two weeks, yes.

10
11

12

I would think they would be able

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

And the same thing with the

fire flow calculation?
MR. NAKAMURA:

That we could do it in, you know, a

13

couple of hours.

14

the drawings and we can get the answer right

15

back up, so that's not a problem.

16

All we need to do is just get

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

17
18

CHAIR CARROLL:

Any further discussion before we take

19

the vote?

20

the motion as amended, please signify by saying

21

aye.

Hearing none, all those in favor of

22

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

23

CHAIR CARROLL:

24

Opposed?

Motion carried.

25
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VOTE:

AYES:

2

NOES:
EXC. :

3
4
5

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmembers Anderson,
Johnson, Molina, Tavares,
Vice-Chair Pontanilla and
Chair Carroll.
None.
Councilmembers Hokama, Kane, and
Mateo.
None.
None.

6
7

ACTION:

Recommending FIRST READING of revised
proposed bill and FILING of
communication.

8
9

10

CHAIR CARROLL:

Thank you, Members.

Thank you for

11

coming back after lunch.

12

Land Use meeting of February 15th, 2006, which

13

now stands adjourned.

14

That concludes this

(Gavel. )

2:05 p.m.

ADJOURN:

15
16
17
18

19
20
21
22
23
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